
UnisysUnisys Corporation 2000 Annual Report



At Unisys, it’s all about e-business. Simply
stated, our mission is to always deliver the
best, unified, e-business critical solutions 
anywhere in the world.

What sets us apart is Unisys people. Our
37,000 creative, tenacious, technically 
excellent people bring technology, services
and solutions together to drive business 
transformation for today’s Internet economy.
With our carefully chosen partners, Unisys
people provide end-to-end e-business 
solutions to impact customer success.

Unisys people unify the past with the future.
We help customers link their current systems
with new technology to meet changing
market requirements. 

Today we integrate capabilities such as 
e-commerce, e-procurement, e-CRM and 
m-commerce across six key industries: finan-
cial services, public sector, communications,
transportation, publishing and commercial. 
By unifying our e-business expertise with our
industry knowledge, Unisys is uniquely posi-
tioned to assist customers in taking full
advantage of the Internet Era.  

Unisys is the unifying force for e-business. 

About our cover    

Photos representative of the current Unisys advertising campaign 
appear on the cover and throughout this annual report. The image 
and tag line — We have a head for e-business — capture our 
passion and know-how for helping customers excel at e-business. 
Our capabilities in e-business solutions, services and high-end 
server technologies help customers adapt their old-economy 
business models to new-economy operating environments. 
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Unisys faced a challenging 2000. The uneventful passing of the Y2K

crisis did not lead — as was widely expected — to a broad-based

pickup in information technology expenditures. Customers tended

to focus their spending in specific, strategic areas: e-business, cus-

tomer relationship management, business process outsourcing, and

open servers. As this happened, we saw slower sales of our propri-

etary ClearPath servers and many of our industry solutions. This

had a significant impact on our financial results in 2000.

Nonetheless, we moved decisively during the year to engineer a

major transition in our portfolio, our skills set and our cost structure

to meet the new requirements of the e-business marketplace. As a

result, we entered 2001 as a leaner, more focused, more competitive 

company. A company with strong capabilities in some of the most

dynamic, growing markets in today’s IT industry. A company that

truly has “a head for e-business.”

The charts at the left tell our financial story in 2000. Revenue

declined 9 percent to $6.9 billion. Given our global footprint, fluctu-

ations in foreign currency — particularly the euro — had a signifi-

cant impact on our revenue during the year. Excluding this impact,

our revenue declined 5 percent in 2000. We reported net income

before special items of $334.3 million, or $1.06 per share, in 2000,

compared to net income before special items of $500.8 million, or

$1.56 per share, in 1999. We continued on course during 2000 in

reshaping our financial structure. We reduced debt by $237.4 million

during the year and ended 2000 with about $760 million in total

debt — the lowest debt level since Unisys was created in 1986.

Lawrence A. Weinbach
Chairman, President and 
Chief Executive Officer

Letter to Stakeholders
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Revenue and profitability declined in 2000, reflecting a
major transition in the marketplace and in our own port-
folio to e-business. We made continued progress in our
balance sheet, however, and have reduced debt by
about two-thirds over the past five years.



Who We Are Today

Our mission in 2000 was to focus Unisys — our people, our programs, our resources, our

technology — on e-business. In particular, we worked to focus Unisys on value-added,

higher-margin opportunities where we can help customers design, build and manage their

technology infrastructures to conduct secure, high-volume transaction processing in an 

e-business environment. Conversely, we worked to de-emphasize, or exit altogether, those

areas of our business where we did not add value to a customer’s e-business equation.

We accomplished that mission through our work in 2000, and this is who we are today:

•We are a highly focused company. The marketplace changes I noted earlier drove a compre-

hensive strategic review of our business in 2000, aimed at improving our operational perfor-

mance in 2001 and beyond. As a result, we’ve taken actions to remove about $1.27 billion of

low-margin revenue from our base as we move through 2001. Given this smaller revenue base,

we also took actions to reduce our cost structure. We took a $127.6 million pretax charge in the

fourth quarter to cover an early retirement program for approximately 750 people and 

additional involuntary reductions of 1,250 positions.

The chart at the right depicts the

expected impact of our strategic actions

on our reported revenue last year of

$6.89 billion. Eliminating the anticipated

$1.27 billion of de-emphasized business,

our ongoing 2000 revenue on a pro forma

basis was $5.62 billion. We will be mea-

suring our results in 2001 against this 

pro forma revenue level.

•We offer end-to-end e-business 

solutions. During 2000, we streamlined

our portfolio of industry-specific solu-

tions from more than 35 to about 20.

This enables us to focus our resources 

on solutions aimed at faster-growing

industry segments.

Our strength has long been in mis-

sion-critical technology and services, such

as transaction processing and systems integration. Today, we are combining many of our own

transaction-processing solutions with the front-end e-business offerings of industry leaders

such as Siebel Systems and other partners. This allows us to provide customers with end-to-

end e-business solutions that are “best of breed” in the marketplace.

•We provide value-added outsourcing and network services. The market shift to e-business

has energized the outsourcing market. Customers are looking for ways to deploy leading-edge

systems and processes without a costly and time-consuming upfront investment.
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By focusing on higher value-added business and exiting 
low-margin business, we expect to eliminate $1.27 billion of
revenue from reported revenue in 2000. If we deduct the
$1.27 billion from our reported revenue in 2000, we realized
$5.62 billion in revenue on a pro forma basis in 2000. 

Impact of Strategic Actions
2000 Revenue
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In 2000, we committed to accelerate growth in our outsourcing business. Outsourcing

represents a recurring stream of long-term “annuity” revenue that enhances financial 

consistency and predictability. In 2000, we closed some of the largest outsourcing contracts 

in Unisys history. These included a 10-year arrangement with Lloyds TSB Bank and Barclays

Bank, under which Unisys is handling high-volume payment processing for these two firms

and other U.K. financial institutions. We also closed a 10-year contract with Abbey Life of

the U.K., under which we have taken over the management of Abbey’s 1.5 million life 

insurance policies. These two contracts alone represent more than $1 billion of new orders.

Driven by our outsourcing orders, we ended 2000 with $5.8 billion in services backlog, a 

25 percent increase over 1999 services backlog. Our plans call for double-digit outsourcing

growth in 2001.

Network services also represents an attractive growth opportunity for Unisys. Networks

are the backbone of e-business. They stream valuable organizational data, voice and images 

at high speeds around the world. And as people become more comfortable doing business

across the Web, e-business transaction levels are growing exponentially.

We are focused on providing value-added services needed by customers to design, inte-

grate, and manage their network and desktop environments. We provide these services both

directly to our customers and to the customers of our channel partners such as Dell and

Hewlett-Packard. In 2000, we entered into an alliance with Ingram Micro under which

Ingram Micro will provide a range of multivendor equipment that we previously provided

directly as part of network services projects.

•Our technology business is focused on high-end enterprise servers. At the core of every

successful e-business are powerful, reliable, scalable enterprise-class servers.

This is our specialty at Unisys, and it is the sole focus of our technology business. Our

ClearPath servers power large financial institutions, airlines and other customers in our 

targeted industries. And now we’ve taken this powerful design and engineering capability 

into the world of standards-based servers, based on Intel processors and Microsoft software.

In 2000 we launched our Cellular MultiProcessing (CMP) technology. CMP is the

industry’s first and only architecture capable of running Microsoft Windows 2000 Datacenter

Server software on a high-end system powered by up to 32 standard Intel processors. Andrew 

Butler of Gartner, a leading industry analyst firm, recently projected that the CMP architec-

ture has an unprecedented two-year lead over competitive server offerings in this market-

place. We are committed to capitalizing on this market opportunity.

Shipments of our CMP-based servers began midyear in 2000, and by year-end we had

achieved approximately $100 million of sales. By all accounts, this was one of the fastest such

starts in industry history. And we look for a continued ramp-up in sales in 2001.

To expand our growth opportunities, we aggressively built alternate sales channels for our

CMP-based servers in 2000. We established original equipment manufacturer (OEM) part-

nerships with such leading suppliers as Compaq, Dell, Hewlett-Packard and ICL. These OEM

relationships have firmly established Unisys CMP-based servers as the industry’s de facto

standard for high-end Intel-based servers.
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Financial Summary

Year ended December 31

(Dollars in millions, except per share data)

1998 1999* 2000* % change (‘99-’00)

Revenue $7,243.9 $7,544.6 $6,885.0 (9%)

SG&A as % of revenue 18.8%  18.4% 18.5% –

Operating income 799.0 960.7 553.0 (42%)

Operating income as %

of revenue 11.0% 12.7% 8.0% –

Interest expense 171.7 127.8 79.8 (38%)

Net income 376.4 500.8 334.3 (33%)

Diluted earnings per share 1.01 1.56 1.06 (32%)

Debt-to-capital ratio 43.1% 33.9% 25.9% –

Total debt 1,163.0 1,000.0  762.6 (24%)

Cash flow from operations 642.2 517.6 419.9 (19%)

Stockholders’ equity 1,535.6 1,953.3 2,186.1 12%

Year-end stock price 34.44 31.94 14.63 (54%)

Shares outstanding 258.2M 310.6M 315.4M 2%

Number of employees 33,500 35,800 36,900 3%

*Before one-time and extraordinary items.

Focused to Win

So while 2000 was clearly a challenging year, we entered 2001 with the capabilities needed to

win in the e-business marketplace. We are focused on higher-margin, higher-growth opportu-

nities. We have a strong portfolio of end-to-end solutions. We are pursuing dynamic growth

opportunities in networking and outsourcing. And our new technology is challenging the

status quo in the high-growth enterprise server market.

At Unisys, our mission is to always deliver the best, unified, e-business critical solutions

anywhere in the world. And to deliver shareholder value. We are focused on delivering both 

in 2001.

Lawrence A. Weinbach
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Chairman’s Q&A

Why did Unisys revenue and earnings
decrease in 2000 compared to 1999?
Our 2000 financial results reflected a major

transition in our portfolio to e-business. The

transition required a thorough evaluation of

our strategy and business structure.

Our customers shifted spending priorities

from traditional, back-office solutions to client-

facing e-business solutions, such as e-commerce

and customer relationship management. This

shift hit us hard and even earlier than many

other firms because of the back-office nature of

many solutions in our portfolio. We needed to

align our priorities with our customers’ new 

e-business priorities, and we moved decisively

during the year to address these marketplace

needs.

What actions did Unisys take 
in response? 
In July 2000, we put in place a five-point

program to improve our business performance

by fine-tuning our business model and reshaping

our portfolio. We are executing aggressively

against that plan. In addition to refocusing on 

e-business, we have reduced our cost base and

continue stringent companywide cost controls.

We are also exiting low-margin, commodity-level

businesses and focusing on value-added, higher-

profit services and technology businesses.

How is Unisys reshaping its technology
portfolio to focus on e-business going
forward? 
First, we are concentrating on value-added 

e-business services, such as consulting,

outsourcing and managed services, as well as

systems and network integration. These are areas

in which we have a depth of expertise. Second,

we have narrowed our technology focus to

concentrate on high-end, enterprise servers, such

as our new ES7000 server, which runs our

revolutionary Cellular MultiProcessing (CMP)

architecture. Our goal is not to be all things to all

people, but to be the best-of-breed provider in

these key areas.

To support our e-business focus, we have

implemented several strategic initiatives. In 

our technology business, we have established

original equipment manufacturer (OEM)

partnerships with leading suppliers such as

Compaq, Dell, Hewlett-Packard and ICL. This

partnering enables these firms to market our

CMP-based servers, which has made CMP the 

de facto standard for high-end Intel-based

servers. We have also increased outsourcing

opportunities, launching iPSL, for example.

This new joint venture in the United Kingdom 

is providing payment processing for banks and 

is expected to generate revenues of about 

$1 billion over the next 10 years. Finally, we are

exiting the resale of low-margin commodity

hardware. We are partnering with Ingram 

Micro to create a Web-based channel for 

Unisys customers to procure commodity

technology products.

This new focus on e-business solutions 

has required a new focus in staffing. We have

increased hiring for key customer-facing 

e-business positions. We are positioning the

company to generate higher-margin, value-

added e-business growth.

Specifically, how is Unisys
implementing its e-business strategy 
in its industry solutions portfolio?
Unisys has nearly halved its industry offerings 

to approximately 20 e-business solutions for

high-growth market segments. We remain

dedicated to six targeted vertical markets:

financial services, public sector, communications,

transportation, publishing and commercial. This

capitalizes on our traditional domain expertise

in these markets.

Historically, our focus has been on back-

office solutions. Our new partnerships with 

e-business leaders such as Ariba, Intershop and

Siebel Systems enable us to provide full end-to-

end e-business solutions. We are integrating key

front- and back-office e-business technologies

such as e-commerce, e-procurement, e-CRM and

m-commerce in our solutions across all markets.
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We are also exploring innovative e-business

opportunities. We now offer Unisys e-@ction

InRoom Connect, which provides hotel guests

with business and entertainment services, access

to hotel services and information, and general

Internet connectivity. And our community portal

solution, LocalLife.com, connects residents,

businesses, and education, government and

nonprofit organizations online throughout a 

local community. We will continue to cultivate

solutions that apply leading-edge innovations to

our e-business portfolio.

Why do you think there has been such
an interest in the ES7000?
The ES7000 is a high-end industry-standard

server that helps customers effectively tackle 

e-business. It is scalable, so that businesses can

easily add server capacity or add new applications.

In fact, it is the only server capable of exploiting

the ability of Windows 2000 Datacenter Server 

to scale to 32 processors. It is also highly reliable,

making it particularly attractive for environments

that operate around the clock. Plus, its cost

benefits are impressive. It delivers price/per-

formance considerably below Unix enterprise

servers. All of these factors make the ES7000 an

attractive option.

We realized approximately $100 million in

revenue from sales of CMP-based servers in 2000,

and expect that to ramp up as our OEM partners

begin their marketing efforts. About 30 percent of

ES7000 sales in 2000 were through alternate

channels. Our goal is to grow alternate channel

sales to comprise 50 percent of sales over the next

two to three years.

What is the outlook for Unisys in the
services arena?
About 70 percent of Unisys business is in

services. We are seeing increases in proposals 

for large, multiyear outsourcing of business

processes. In addition, we are seeing growth in

requests for solutions and services as e-business

projects move from the strategy phase to the

implementation phase.

We ended 2000 with $5.8 billion in services

backlog, which represents a 25 percent increase

over year-end 1999 and the strongest services

backlog in Unisys history.

What are you doing to ensure the 
Unisys workforce has the skills needed
to support its new portfolio focus? 
Today’s fast-moving market defines the types 

of skills we need in order to be a viable 

e-business competitor. In 2000, we hired 5,500

people. Eighty percent of these new hires moved

into customer-facing positions, and nearly 30

percent were new college graduates. In 2001 we

expect to hire 6,000 to 7,000 people, largely in

sales and delivery roles.

We look to our internal corporate Unisys

University and other educational sources to keep

the skills of our workforce up to date. We’re

using technology to deliver courses economically.

We’ve successfully incorporated computer-based

training, Web-based training and groupware

courses into our curricula. Through Unisys

University, 100 percent of our sales executives

and some 2,800 delivery professionals received 

e-business training in 2000. More than 3,200

Unisys employees are enrolled in or have

completed Microsoft or other technical

certification courses, and more than 1,100 

Unisys people have received ES7000 training.

We spend about $50 million annually on 

training employees.

Unisys is focusing on six vertical markets, whose compound annual
growth rate (CAGR) for information services and solutions from 1999 
to 2004 ranges from 11.5 percent to 15.5 percent. However, horizontal
segments in these markets, such as customer relationship manage-
ment/customer interaction solutions and e-business services, are
expected to show much greater growth, up to 52.1 percent CAGR.
Thus, we are integrating leading horizontal e-business solutions from 
our partners into our vertical solutions to meet customer needs and 
take advantage of new-economy growth areas.

Source: IDC

1999

2004

Information Services and Solutions: 
New-Economy Growth Areas

B
ill
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Customer Relationship 
Management/Customer 

Interaction Solutions e-Business Services
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The new economy requires different skills and solutions to help customers excel. Unisys provides consulting,
systems integration, solutions and management services that enable clients to implement the technology and
business process transformation required for e-business success. As clients increasingly focus on their core
competencies, many choose to outsource some or all of their technology infrastructure and noncore business
processes. Our global computing and communications infrastructure is ready to handle all or part of a
customer’s outsourcing requirements.

e-Business transactions depend on robust networks that link increasingly complex e-transaction
infrastructures together — securely, reliably and with ability to scale. Unisys offers the experience,
expertise and global reach to design, build, support, manage and ensure security for the complex networks
required by e-business organizations today. We also excel at managing the desktop and mobile computing
assets that run on those networks and drive e-transaction activity.

Our revolutionary CMP architecture, ideal for enterprise-class e-business computing, is establishing a new
standard for high-end server economics and flexibility. CMP-based technology is sold on an original equipment
manufacturer (OEM) basis by Compaq, Dell, Hewlett-Packard and ICL. CMP is the foundation for our ES server
family and will be for our ClearPath server family. ClearPath provides the anchor server environment for
extremely high-volume, mission-critical solutions that benefit from proprietary and open components. The
ES7000 provides unsurpassed scalability and flexibility as an optimum high-performance platform for
Microsoft’s Windows 2000 Datacenter Server.

Services/
Outsourcing

Network 
Infrastructure

Enterprise 
Server
Technology

Financial Services

Public Sector

Communications

Transportation

Publishing

Commercial

e-Business
Solutions
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In the Public Sector, constituents increasingly expect service levels and value comparable to that in the e-business space.
Unisys Social Services solutions combine integrated case management, customer relationship management and other
capabilities to ensure that citizens get the funds and services to which they’re entitled. Justice & Public Safety solutions use a
similar approach to create effective and efficient police and justice environments. Registry & Revenue solutions draw on Unisys
image-based, digital and Web-based solutions to enable collection and payment of taxes and other revenues. They also allow
registration of records online quickly, accurately and economically. Administration solutions bring streamlined e-government to
public-sector finance, administration and procurement.

The Communications sector is seeing rapid convergence of all segments driven by increased competition, new market entrants,
high subscriber expectations and low subscriber loyalty. To address these trends, our Multimedia Value-Added Services
merges phone, fax and e-mail into a unified messaging capability. Our e-Telco solutions deliver online orders, changes, customer
service, billing and call centers, all in a turnkey offering for the telecommunications and ISP market. Mobile Commerce solutions
will develop opportunities to deliver Unisys vertical applications via mobile technology.

The Commercial Sector overall continues to transform. In this sector, e-business transaction capability is becoming part of the cost
of entry to attract and retain customers and deliver differentiated value. The most aggressive e-business growth is occurring in four
areas: e-commerce, e-procurement, e-CRM and m-commerce. Unisys partners with best-of-breed companies that specialize in these
e-business solution growth areas. We apply our enterprise solutions expertise to build seamless environments, unifying these front-end
and back-end e-business solutions with legacy environments.

The Publishing marketplace is evolving rapidly, and the winners will successfully leverage their brands, editorial capabilities,
databases and sales forces in the e-business space. Our Editorial solutions encompass Unisys editorial, wire and archive
solutions with multimedia capabilities and Web/mobile interfaces. Our Media Sales and Advertising solutions enhance our
existing sales and advertising capabilities and combine them with Siebel Systems’ CRM solutions. Together, they provide an
integrated customer management and advertising solution.

The Transportation sector has the dual challenge of addressing new Internet business models while depending on mission-critical,
legacy computing environments. So Unisys Travel Sales and Distribution solutions build on existing Unisys reservation and
customer loyalty solutions to create next-generation customer-centric solutions. These solutions enable passenger sales, processing
and management for airlines and global distribution systems. Airport Automation solutions speed travelers through check in and
boarding via self-service kiosks, intelligent baggage tags and biometric identification. Integrated Logistics solutions expand Unisys
cargo solutions into programs that can integrate Web-based global e-commerce supply chains for freight forwarders and carriers.

Key Partners: Ariba, Exult, ICG Commerce, Intershop, Microsoft, Oracle, Siebel Systems

Key Competitors: Accenture, Cap Gemini Ernst & Young, Computer Sciences Corp., Deloitte Consulting, EDS,
IBM Global Services, KPMG Consulting LLP, PricewaterhouseCoopers

Key Partners: Alcatel, AT&T, Baltimore Technologies, CheckPoint Software Technologies, Cisco Systems, Concert          
Communications, Dell, Hewlett-Packard, Microsoft, Nokia, Nortel Networks, Novell, Qwest Communications

Key Competitors: Compaq, EDS, IBM Global Services, ICL, Siemens Nixdorf

Key Partners: BEA Systems, Compaq, Computer Associates, Dell, Hewlett-Packard, Hitachi, ICL, Intel, Microsoft, Oracle

Key Competitors: Compaq, Hewlett-Packard, IBM, Sun Microsystems

9

The Financial Services market is quickly evolving from a transaction-centric to a customer-centric model. In response, our 
Customer Relationship solutions provide transparent integration across traditional teller and call-center channels, while integrating
new digital, Internet and mobile banking channels. Wealth Management solutions provide consolidation and portfolio management
capabilities for the rapidly growing Internet-enabled, mass-affluent individuals. Life and Pension administration solutions provide
global e-business platforms that address the deregulating markets. Integrated Payments enables organizations to outsource busi-
ness processes for paper-based payments. At the same time, these organizations are moving to the world of Electronic Payment
solutions, which deliver Internet-based bill presentment and payment capabilities across PC, PDA and WAP access channels. 
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Mary-Linh Tran is a
helpdesk agent, assisting
the City of Chicago with
technical issues and
trouble-shooting.

For some people, e-business 
is a corporate directive.

Unisys People
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Customers know they can rely on Unisys

people to help propel them into the future of 

e-business. We provide the consulting skills,

technical expertise and industry knowledge

that help customers operate confidently in

the Internet economy. We mobilize Unisys

teams that bring the best combination of

skills to address customers’ needs. No

matter which team is on the job, no matter

where in the world, our customers can be

sure they are working with some of the most

creative, tenacious and technically excellent

people in the industry.

Kiron Viegas, hardware
engineer, and Maureen
Connell, software engi-
neer, are part of a top-
notch technology team
that developed the
Unisys e-@ction Enter-
prise Server ES7000.

Arlene Barreto is a
member of the special-
ized team that creates
strategies for CRM
design, implementation
and maintenance.

As a member of a global
outsourcing team,
Stewart Nuttall tailors
Unisys technology and
support services to each
customer’s needs.

Juergen Niess provides
customers with network
consulting services, from
conceptual work to man-
agement consulting.

Ray Coyte is a customer
relationship executive
responsible for all
aspects of the Unisys
relationship with a large
U.K. client.

Marcela Téllez in 
university recruiting 
prepares future 
generations of
employees through
internship and co-op 
programs.
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The solution is simple. 

Unisys Partners
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A successful company builds relationships

with successful partners. To meet 

customers’ widely varying needs from 

start to finish, Unisys works with services, 

software and hardware providers that are

recognized leaders in their industries.

Unisys partners are integral to our vision

and growth.

At Unisys, long-standing partnerships 

with IT leaders are complemented by new

alliances with e-business leaders. Such 

partnerships enable us to extend our 

market reach and help customers conduct

profitable e-business. 



Nasdaq: Real-Time 
Quote Broadcasting 

Nasdaq is the world’s largest electronic stock

market. It trades more shares per day than any

other U.S. equities market. Unisys solutions

ensure “no-fail” operations for Nasdaq

surveillance systems, as well as real-time quote

broadcasting for nearly all 4,500 listed

companies. Results: real-time delivery; high

scalability; mission-critical services.

Orange: Next-Generation 
Voice Technology 

Orange, a leading European mobile phone

company, specializes in high-quality

communications and leading-edge voice and

data services. As a key technology supplier for

Orange, Unisys provides critical networking

solutions and applications. Unisys also works

with Orange to develop new technologies for

voice recognition. Results: increased revenue;

state-of-the-art enterprise.
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We deliver e-business expertise in six targeted markets: 
financial services, public sector, communications,    
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Swiss Post yellowworld: 
State-of-the-Art e-Business

Unisys and yellowworld, Swiss Post’s 

e-business company, bring Swiss Post’s 150

years of trusted services to the forefront of the

new economy. yellowworld provides online

merchants with an Internet-based single point

of contact for e-selling, e-procurement,

e-billing and e-logistics solutions. Results: new

market opportunity; increased client base.
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Electronic customer relationship management,

or e-CRM, is all about integration. This means

helping businesses integrate information

about each of their customers into a

comprehensive, single data source, making

future customer interactions a positive

experience. Through systems integration,

solutions deployment, and recommendations

for process and organization re-engineering,

Unisys helps make good customer relations

even better. 

transportation, publishing and commercial.
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PTK Centertel: Mobile
Communications 

For PTK Centertel, Poland’s innovative mobile

communications operator, Unisys delivered a

sophisticated Wireless Application Protocol

(WAP) solution. WAP lets PTK Centertel’s

mobile subscribers access e-mail, news,

weather, banking services and stock

information on their mobile phones and other

wireless devices. Results: improved market

positioning; increased revenue; increased

market share.

BankWest Australia: Value-Added
Banking Solutions 

Building on a 12-year relationship, Unisys

Australia and BankWest formed a joint

venture company, Unisys West, to help

customers in a range of industries meet the

challenges of the Internet economy. Unisys

West provides a complete suite of IT services

to clients throughout Western Australia.

Results: diversified revenue streams;

comprehensive range of services.
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Through innovative partnerships, we keep pace with the 
fast-moving market and answer customers’ demand    
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SAVIA Amadeus: Online 
Travel Arrangements 

Unisys and Microsoft partnered to develop

viajesydestinos.com, Spain’s first Internet

travel mall, for SAVIA Amadeus. SAVIA

Amadeus provides the services of Amadeus,

one of the world’s largest global travel

distribution systems. The site offers consumer

services from travel agencies, giving consumers 

access to information and booking systems.

Results: new market opportunity; enhanced

customer services.
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Increasingly, busy people are banking, paying

bills and checking stock performance through

mobile devices. Unisys counts many early

implementers of m-commerce services among

our customers. Together, we’re developing

the technology that will make m-commerce

as ubiquitous as telephony.

   for integrated e-business solutions.
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Health e Connex (HeC): 
e-Healthcare 

HeC provides an e-commerce solution that

optimizes the interchange between providers

and payers, ensuring round-the-clock access to

patient eligibility data as well as timely and

accurate claims payment. The Unisys ES7000

lets HeC accommodate millions of healthcare

transactions daily for increasing numbers of

concurrent users. Results: unsurpassed

flexibility; improved support and application

service provider services.
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For high-performance e-business transaction processing, 
our reliable, scalable and flexible CMP technology   

Exult: Service Center Support 

The partnership between Exult and Unisys goes

beyond traditional supplier-customer. Unisys

provides Exult with a variety of services to help

design, build and manage its global call centers,

which handle human resource functions for

large corporations. Unisys is also a client, using

Exult solutions for our own HR needs. Results:

robust, secure worldwide operations.
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Bank für Arbeit und Wirtschaft
(BAWAG): Mobile Banking 

BAWAG developed the first transaction-

enabled Wireless Application Protocol, or

WAP, banking solution in Austria, thus

enabling banking and stock trading from a

mobile phone. And Unisys helped make it

happen. By integrating key technologies,

Unisys created a state-of-the-art global mobile

banking environment. Results: increased

revenue; cutting-edge services.
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Organizations conducting e-business need

servers that are highly reliable, scalable and

flexible. They need systems that let them

quickly add resources, and consolidate or

isolate applications. With the Unisys e-@ction

Enterprise Server ES7000, e-businesses can

be sure they’re always open for business.

   is fast becoming the de facto standard.
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Government of Malaysia: 
Smart Card 

With its Government MultiPurpose Card,

Malaysia has taken a giant step into the future.

Providing national identity, driver’s license,

health, immigration and e-cash information,

the MultiPurpose Card is the first government

multiapplication smart card in the world.

Unisys developed the core application that

made it possible. Results: superior

convenience; enhanced citizen services.

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania:
Citizen Services 

Led by Gov. Tom Ridge, Pennsylvania is on 

the cutting edge of the technology revolution.

Unisys is developing middleware for PA

PowerPort, which provides electronic access 

to government services. Unisys also provides

solutions for boat registration, parks

reservations, instant gun check and more.

Results: better relationships with citizens;

fast, easy-to-use services.
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Enterprises rely on us to design, deliver and manage 
infrastructures that unify all    
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Banamex: e-Banking 

Banamex was Mexico’s first online bank.

Unisys helped make it one of the world’s best.

Our systems and services enable e-banking,

investments, tax payment and even 

an electronic mall. Results: better customer

service; stronger portfolio; more robust

operations.
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There’s only one way to gain customers’ trust

for e-business: Ensure that their information

is secure and their privacy protected. Unisys

experts not only design and integrate security

solutions but also help organizations develop

the policies that govern security and privacy. 

It’s just one more way we make sure our

customers are ready for e-business.

   aspects of their e-business.
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The Internet is transforming the way Unisys people share information, develop their 

skills, and interact with partners, suppliers and customers.

Innovative Internet applications empower our customers. They can purchase our products

using our Web-based ordering capability, Unisys e-@ction EasyShop, and they can access

information and service via our SelfHelpDesk, available around

the clock. We also use online connectivity to unite customers with

the Unisys people who service their accounts.

An automated customer account system from partner 

Siebel Systems was deployed this year to 4,000 sales and sales 

support professionals. This tool enhances our service to large,

multinational customers by enabling account team members to

operate in concert within and across geographic boundaries and

business specialties.

Internet and intranet access provides extensive connectivity

throughout the company. Our Worldwide Human Resources 

department uses the Internet to recruit people with hard-to-find

skills. Company news is relayed instantaneously to internal and

external audiences. Employees can use Web-based self-service

tools to manage their benefits, personal information and careers.

Unisys University, our in-house corporate learning center, delivers

more than half its courses electronically, making them available 

inexpensively and at the convenience of employees.

Empowering employees 
and customers — electronically

Larry Mays uses our
powerful intranet and
Web-based resources 
to stay connected with
his business team and
clients in e-Business
Services. 

Employees use intranet
sites like the Career
Portfolio to chart their
professional growth.

Unisys e-Communities
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Unisys volunteers Karen Alyanakian and Bill Stravinsky
help make science fun while they mentor the next
generation at Glen Acres Elementary School in West
Chester, Pa. These students are part of an after-school
science club sponsored by Unisys and the Future 
Scientists and Engineers of America.

Another popular e-community is the Unisys Volunteer 

Connection. This intranet site links Unisys volunteers to 

colleagues with similar community interests. Those interests

range from mentoring at-risk youth to supporting orphaned

children to preparing students for careers in science and 

technology. Employees around the globe registered more than

150,000 hours of volunteer time in 2000. Unisys cash and

technology contributions complement our volunteers’ 

activities — all making a difference in the communities where

we live and conduct business. 



Corporate
Headquarters
Unisys Way

Blue Bell,

Pennsylvania 19424

North America
Unisys does business in all
50 U.S. states and all 13
Canadian provinces and
territories, with principal
offices at these locations:

Birmingham, Alabama

Montgomery, Alabama

Anchorage, Alaska

Calgary, Alberta

Phoenix, Arizona

Tempe, Arizona

Little Rock, Arkansas

Vancouver, British Columbia

Bakersfield, California

Brisbane, California

Camarillo, California

Carpinteria, California

Los Angeles, California

Norwalk, California

Sacramento, California

Englewood, Colorado

Shelton, Connecticut

Dover, Delaware

Boca Raton, Florida

Miami, Florida

Niceville, Florida

Tallahassee, Florida

Tampa, Florida

Atlanta, Georgia

Honolulu, Hawaii

Chicago, Illinois

Lisle, Illinois

Lombard, Illinois

Indianapolis, Indiana

Bettendorf, Iowa

West Des Moines, Iowa

Overland Park, Kansas

Frankfort, Kentucky

Baton Rouge, Louisiana

Portland, Maine

Winnipeg, Manitoba

Hanover, Maryland

Hunt Valley, Maryland

Burlington, Massachusetts

Somerville, Massachusetts

Okemos, Michigan

Eagan, Minnesota

Jackson, Mississippi

St. Louis, Missouri

Omaha, Nebraska

Las Vegas, Nevada

Reno, Nevada

Fredericton, New Brunswick

Marlton, New Jersey

New Providence, New Jersey

Trenton, New Jersey

Albuquerque, New Mexico

Albany, New York

New York, New York

Rochester, New York

Cary, North Carolina

Charlotte, North Carolina

Winston-Salem, North Carolina

Bismarck, North Dakota

Halifax, Nova Scotia

Brecksville, Ohio

Holland, Ohio

Westerville, Ohio

Oklahoma City, Oklahoma

Ottawa, Ontario

Pickering, Ontario

Toronto, Ontario

Tualatin, Oregon

Harrisburg, Pennsylvania

Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania

Montréal, Québec

Québec City, Québec

Columbia, South Carolina

Sioux Falls, South Dakota

Memphis, Tennessee

Austin, Texas

Houston, Texas

Irving, Texas

Burlington, Vermont

McLean, Virginia

Richmond, Virginia

Bellevue, Washington

Seattle, Washington

Charleston, West Virginia

Brookfield, Wisconsin

Madison, Wisconsin

Latin
America/Caribbean
Headquarters

Boca Raton, Florida

Principal Offices

Buenos Aires, Argentina

Bridgetown, Barbados+

La Paz, Bolivia+

Rio de Janeiro, Brazil

São Paulo, Brazil

Santiago, Chile

Bogotá, Colombia

San José, Costa Rica

Santo Domingo,

Dominican Republic+

Quito, Ecuador+

San Salvador, El Salvador*

Guatemala City, Guatemala*

Tegucigalpa, Honduras*

Kingston, Jamaica+

Mexico City, Mexico

Managua, Nicaragua*

Panama City, Panama+

Lima, Peru

San Juan, Puerto Rico

Port of Spain, Trinidad+

Montevideo, Uruguay

Caracas, Venezuela

U.K./Africa/Middle
East/India
Headquarters

Uxbridge, United Kingdom

Principal Offices

Algiers, Algeria+

Manama, Bahrain+

Cotonou, Benin+

Gaborone, Botswana

Ouagadougou, Burkina Faso+

Nicosia, Cyprus+

Cairo, Egypt+

Addis Ababa, Ethiopia+

Libreville, Gabon+

Accra, Ghana+

Mumbai, India+

Tehran, Iran+

Dublin, Ireland

Ramat Gan, Israel

Tel Aviv, Israel+

Abidjan, Ivory Coast+

Amman, Jordan+

Nairobi, Kenya+

Safat, Kuwait+

Beirut, Lebanon+

Blantyre, Malawi+

Bamako, Mali+

Valetta, Malta+

Nouakchott, Mauritania+

Port Louis, Mauritius+

Casablanca, Morocco+

Windhoek, Namibia

Niamey, Niger+

Lagos, Nigeria+

Belfast, Northern Ireland+

Ruwi, Oman+

Karachi, Pakistan#

Riyadh, Saudi Arabia+

Dakar, Senegal+

Johannesburg, South Africa

Dar es Salaam, Tanzania+

Lomé, Togo+

Tunis, Tunisia+

Kampala, Uganda

Dubai, United Arab 

Emirates+*

London, United Kingdom

Lusaka, Zambia

Harare, Zimbabwe+

Continental Europe
Principal Offices

Vienna, Austria

Brussels, Belgium

Sofia, Bulgaria+

Zagreb, Croatia+

Prague, Czech Republic

Copenhagen, Denmark

Helsinki, Finland

Paris, France

Frankfurt, Germany

Gibraltar+

Athens, Greece+

Budapest, Hungary

Reykjavik, Iceland+

Milan, Italy

Almaty, Kazakhstan+

Riga, Latvia+

Vilnius, Lithuania+

Luxembourg

Skopje, Macedonia+

Amsterdam, Netherlands

Oslo, Norway

Warsaw, Poland

Lisbon, Portugal

Bucharest, Romania+

Bratislava, Slovak Republic

Ljubljana, Slovenia+

Madrid, Spain

Stockholm, Sweden

Thalwil, Switzerland

Zurich, Switzerland

Ankara, Turkey+

Istanbul, Turkey+

Belgrade, Yugoslavia+

Asia North
Principal Offices
Beijing, China
Guangzhou, China
Shanghai, China

Hong Kong, China

Seoul, South Korea

Taipei, Taiwan 

Asia South
Principal Offices
Dacca, Bangladesh+
Jakarta, Indonesia+

Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia

Manila, Philippines

Singapore

Colombo, Sri Lanka+

Bangkok, Thailand

Hanoi, Vietnam*

South Pacific
Headquarters

Sydney, Australia

Principal Offices

Adelaide, Australia

Brisbane, Australia

Canberra, Australia

Melbourne, Australia

Perth, Australia

Auckland, New Zealand

Wellington, New Zealand

Japan
Headquarters

Tokyo#

As a global company, Unisys offers the breadth of resources to support our customers around the world.

Listed are major sites where Unisys serves clients, develops technologies or markets solutions. This range 

of locations is complemented by a strong network of sales, marketing and support sites worldwide.
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Unisys Around the World



U.S. Federal
Government
Headquarters

McLean, Virginia

Principal Offices

Montgomery, Alabama

Fort Collins, Colorado

Washington, D.C.

Niceville, Florida

Fairview Heights, Illinois

Frankfort, Kentucky

Baton Rouge, Louisiana

Hanover, Maryland

Somerville, Massachusetts

St. Louis, Missouri

Omaha, Nebraska

Trenton, New Jersey

Miamisburg, Ohio

Oklahoma City, Oklahoma

Hillsboro, Oregon

Portland, Oregon

Alexandria, Virginia

Arlington, Virginia

Crystal City, Virginia

Falls Church, Virginia

Glen Allen, Virginia

Hampton, Virginia

Reston, Virginia

Springfield, Virginia

Vienna, Virginia

Virginia Beach, Virginia

Outsourcing
Centers
Major sites where Unisys

runs information operations

or provides other support

services.

Headquarters

Morrisville, North Carolina

Buenos Aires, Argentina

Tempe, Arizona

North Ryde, Australia

Perth, Australia

Belo Horizonte, Brazil

Rio de Janeiro, Brazil

São Paolo, Brazil 

(2 locations)

Bakersfield, California

Camarillo, California

Long Beach, California

Wanchai, Hong Kong

Mexico City, Mexico

Eagan, Minnesota

Amsterdam, Netherlands

Pearl River, New York

Auckland, New Zealand

Wellington, New Zealand

Harrisburg, Pennsylvania

Alingsas, Sweden

Austin, Texas*

Irving, Texas*

Milton Keynes, United 

Kingdom (2 locations)

Seattle, Washington

Engineering,
Development &
Distribution
Major sites where Unisys

designs hardware, develops

software and distributes

products. Distribution is part

of a network of 125 centers

and 8,000 stocking locations

worldwide.

Chandler, Arizona

North Ryde, Australia

Brussels, Belgium

São Paulo, Brazil

Mission Viejo, California

Rancho Bernardo, California

Santiago, Chile

Hong Kong, China

Bogotá, Colombia

Norcross, Georgia

Sulzbach, Germany

Elk Grove Village, Illinois

Milan, Italy

Tokyo, Japan#

Plymouth, Michigan

Eagan, Minnesota

Roseville, Minnesota

Sassenheim, Netherlands

Cincinnati, Ohio

Toronto, Ontario

Blue Bell, Pennsylvania

Tredyffrin, Pennsylvania

Manila, Philippines

Uxbridge, United Kingdom

Salt Lake City, Utah

Caracas, Venezuela

Redmond, Washington

Support Centers
Major sites where Unisys

provides electronic and

telephone services to 

support hardware and 

software systems.

Buenos Aires, Argentina

Brisbane, Australia

Canberra, Australia

Melbourne, Australia

Sydney, Australia

Vienna, Austria

Brussels, Belgium

Rio de Janeiro, Brazil

São Paulo, Brazil

Santiago, Chile

Hong Kong, China

Bogotá, Colombia

San José, Costa Rica

Copenhagen, Denmark

Helsinki, Finland

Paris, France

Atlanta, Georgia

Frankfurt, Germany

Milan, Italy

Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia

Mexico City, Mexico

Plymouth, Michigan

Roseville, Minnesota

Amsterdam, Netherlands

Wellington, New Zealand

Blue Bell, Pennsylvania

Lima, Peru

Lisbon, Portugal

San Juan, Puerto Rico

Seoul, South Korea

Madrid, Spain

Stockholm, Sweden

Zurich, Switzerland

Taipei, Taiwan

Milton Keynes, United 

Kingdom

Caracas, Venezuela

Centers of
Excellence 
Major sites where Unisys

showcases expertise in

specific technologies or 

markets.

Melbourne, Australia

Sydney, Australia

Vienna, Austria

Brussels, Belgium

São Paulo, Brazil

Mission Viejo, California

Santiago, Chile

Bogotá, Colombia

San José, Costa Rica

Boca Raton, Florida

Paris, France

Atlanta, Georgia

Frankfurt, Germany

Sulzbach, Germany

Milan, Italy

Tokyo, Japan#

Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia

Burlington, Massachusetts

Mexico City, Mexico

Plymouth, Michigan

Eagan, Minnesota

Roseville, Minnesota

Amsterdam, Netherlands

Farmington, New York

Auckland, New Zealand

Halifax, Nova Scotia

Blue Bell, Pennsylvania

Kennett Square, Pennsylvania

Malvern, Pennsylvania

Tredyffrin, Pennsylvania

Manila, Philippines

Lisbon, Portugal

Johannesburg, South Africa

Madrid, Spain

Zurich, Switzerland

Austin, Texas

London, United Kingdom

Uxbridge, United Kingdom

Caracas, Venezuela

McLean, Virginia

Redmond, Washington

To contact a Unisys office 

close to you:

In the U.S. and Canada: 

800-338-3501 or 215-986-4011 

Outside the U.S.: +215-986-4011

On the Web:

http://www.app1.unisys.com/GlobalOps
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Application service provider (ASP) — A
technology company that “rents” software
and services to customers. ASPs provide
and manage applications that support busi-
ness processes over the Internet.

Cellular MultiProcessing (CMP) — The
Unisys server architecture that applies
mainframe design characteristics to servers
that are based on industry-standard Intel
and Microsoft technologies. CMP enables
such servers to achieve enterprise-class
levels of performance, scalability and 
reliability.

e-Business — The use of both technology
and new business strategies to conduct
business online. e-Business provides a
sales, marketing and information channel 
in the Internet economy.

e-Commerce — The use of technology to
conduct financial transactions online —
such as the buying and selling of products
and services — usually via the Internet. The
financial-transactions side of e-business.

e-Government — The application of e-busi-
ness technologies and strategies to govern-
ment organizations. 

Electronic customer relationship 
management (e-CRM) — A coordinated
methodology that uses information tech-
nology to understand and serve customers. 

End-to-end solutions — The full comple-
ment of technology, services and solutions
that address an organization’s needs from
the beginning of a business technology 
project through its completion. 

Enterprise-class servers — Hardware that
works with software to handle the computing
needs of large departments or organizations.
Enterprise-class servers provide reliability and
scalability.

e-Procurement — The acquisition of products or
services through the Internet or other online
channels.

e-Tailer — An online retailer.

Legacy systems — Older computing technology
used by an organization over time. Legacy sys-
tems perform business-critical functions and can
be integrated with newer systems.

m-Commerce — Mobile commerce. The use of
mobile devices, such as wireless phones, to
conduct e-business.

Mission-critical — Being essential to the run-
ning of a business. Mission-critical tasks must
be conducted on a 24x7 basis.

Scalability — The ability of a technology to
handle larger and larger workloads.

Smart card — A card, similar to a payment or
credit card, that contains a computer chip and
memory that can store a digital ID, account
information, medical data and so on.

Vertical solution — Business processes
designed to address requirements of a specific
industry, such as financial services or the public
sector.

Wireless Application Protocol (WAP) — A tech-
nology standard for enabling wireless transac-
tions over digital phones and hand-held
terminals.

Glossary
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Unisys Corporation

Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations

Overview

During 2000, Unisys implemented a major transition of its business to meet the new

requirements of the e-business marketplace. The company took actions during the year to

focus its resources on new high-growth markets; de-emphasize non-strategic, low-growth

and low-margin businesses and products; and reduce its cost structure in line with its new,

more focused business model. In particular, the company:

• Streamlined and repositioned its portfolio of industry-specific repeatable 

solutions to focus on high-growth market segments including customer 

relationship management (CRM), e-commerce, e-procurement and 

mobile commerce;

• Drove growth in its outsourcing business by pursuing joint ventures and 

other new business models;

• Focused its networking business on high value-added services, such as 

managed network outsourcing services, network consulting, and an 

expanded network security management practice; and

• Continued to focus its technology business on high-end, enterprise-class 

servers and to de-emphasize low-margin commodity products.

As a result of these actions, in the fourth quarter of 2000, the company recorded a

pretax restructuring charge of $127.6 million, or $.29 per diluted share, primarily for a

work-force reduction. See Note 5 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

In addition, the company has engaged an investment banking firm to explore strategic

alternatives for its Federal government business, including a potential sale. The company

estimates that revenue in 2000 related to the Federal government business and the

businesses exited or de-emphasized as a result of the actions taken above was approximately

$1.3 billion. Income related to this revenue was immaterial.



Results of operations

The company’s financial results for 2000 reflected the transition in its business model. Net

income in 2000 declined to $225.0 million, or $.71 per diluted common share, from $510.7

million, or $1.59 per diluted common share, in 1999. The results for 2000 included the special

charge of $127.6 million, or $.29 per diluted common share, as well as an extraordinary charge

of $19.8 million, or $.06 per diluted share, for the early extinguishment of debt. Excluding these

items, diluted earnings per share in 2000 was $1.06. The results for 1999 included a one-time 

tax benefit of $22.0 million, or $.07 per diluted common share, related to a U.S. Treasury

income tax regulation, as well as an extraordinary charge of $12.1 million, or $.04 per diluted

share, for the early extinguishment of debt. Excluding those items, diluted earnings per share in

1999 was $1.56.

The following comparisons of income statement categories exclude the one-time items in

2000 and 1999.

Revenue for 2000 was $6.89 billion compared to $7.54 billion in 1999 and $7.24 billion in

1998. Revenue in 2000 decreased 9% from the prior year, and revenue in 1999 increased 4%

from 1998. Excluding the negative impact of foreign currency fluctuations, revenue in 2000

declined 5% and revenue in 1999 increased 7%. Revenue from international operations in 2000,

1999, and 1998 was $4.01 billion, $4.19 billion and $4.09 billion, respectively. Revenue from U.S.

operations was $2.88 billion in 2000, $3.35 billion in 1999, and $3.15 billion in 1998.

Total gross profit percent was 31.2% in 2000, 35.6% in 1999, and 34.1% in 1998. The decrease

in 2000 from 1999 was principally due to a lower mix of higher-margin products and services

and reduced utilization of services personnel. The increase in 1999 from 1998 was largely due to

productivity improvements and cost reduction programs in the services segment.

Selling, general and administrative expenses were $1.28 billion in 2000 (18.5% of revenue),

$1.38 billion in 1999 (18.4% of revenue), and $1.36 billion in 1998 (18.8% of revenue).

Research and development expenses in 2000 were $315.4 million compared to $339.4

million in 1999 and $308.3 million in 1998.

In 2000, the company reported operating income of $553.0 million (8.0% of revenue)

compared to $960.7 million (12.7% of revenue) in 1999 and $799.0 million (11.0% of revenue)

in 1998.
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Information by business segment for 2000, 1999, and 1998 is presented below:

(Millions of dollars) Total Eliminations Services Technology

2000
Customer revenue $6,885.0 $4,741.6 $2,143.4
Intersegment $ (437.2) 46.6 390.6

Total revenue $6,885.0 $ (437.2) $4,788.2 $2,534.0
Gross profit percent 31.2% 21.6% 44.7%
Operating income percent 8.0% 1.7% 17.7%

1999
Customer revenue $7,544.6 $5,287.0 $2,257.6
Intersegment $ (577.5) 65.6 511.9

Total revenue $7,544.6 $ (577.5) $5,352.6 $2,769.5
Gross profit percent 35.6% 25.6% 48.1%
Operating income percent 12.7% 7.9% 20.3%

1998
Customer revenue $7,243.9 $4,944.8 $2,299.1
Intersegment $ (511.2) 73.7 437.5

Total revenue $7,243.9 $ (511.2) $5,018.5 $2,736.6
Gross profit percent 34.1% 24.4% 46.9%
Operating income percent 11.0% 6.6% 18.7%

Gross profit percent and operating income percent are as a percent of total revenue.

In the services segment, customer revenue was $4.74 billion in 2000, $5.29 billion in 1999,

and $4.94 billion in 1998. Customer revenue in 2000 decreased 10% from 1999, as an increase in

networking services revenue was more than offset by declines in systems integration and

solutions, and proprietary maintenance. The decline in proprietary maintenance revenue, which

continues to decline industry wide, reflected customers’ high rates of replacement of older

equipment in 1999 with newer systems that are under warranty and require less maintenance.

Customer revenue grew 7% in 1999 led by growth in outsourcing and systems integration and

solutions revenue which more than offset the continuing decline in proprietary maintenance

revenue. Services gross profit declined to 21.6% in 2000 from 25.6% in 1999, and 24.4% in 1998.

Operating profit in the services segment was 1.7% in 2000, 7.9% in 1999, and 6.6% in 1998. The

decreases in both gross profit and operating profit in 2000 were largely due to reduced utilization

of services personnel as well as a lower mix of higher-margin systems integration and solutions,

and proprietary maintenance revenue. The increases in both gross profit and operating profit in

1999 were largely due to productivity improvements and cost reduction programs.
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In the technology segment, customer revenue was $2.14 billion in 2000, $2.25 billion in 1999,

and $2.30 billion in 1998. Customer revenue in 2000 declined 5% from 1999 as strong initial sales

of the company’s Cellular MultiProcessing servers were more than offset by a decline in ClearPath

enterprise server revenue. In 1999, revenue for ClearPath enterprise servers was up slightly

compared to 1998. The gross profit percent was 44.7% in 2000, 48.1% in 1999, and 46.9% in 1998.

The gross profit decline in 2000 was due in large part to a lower percentage of enterprise server

sales. The increase in 1999 was due in large part to a richer mix of enterprise servers and

enterprise server software sales. Operating profit in this segment was 17.7% in 2000, 20.3% in

1999, and 18.7% in 1998. The decrease in operating profit in 2000 was principally due to the gross

profit decline. The increase in 1999 in operating profit, above the respective increase in gross

profit, was largely due to cost reduction programs as well as stringent controls over all

discretionary expenditures.

Interest expense declined to $79.8 million in 2000 from $127.8 million in 1999, and $171.7

million in 1998. The decline in 2000 from 1999 was principally due to lower average interest rates

as well as the effect of interest rate swaps (discussed below). The decline in 1999 from 1998 was

principally due to lower average debt levels.

Other income (expense), net, which can vary from year to year, was income of $33.4 million

in 2000, and an expense of $62.6 million in 1999 and $33.1 million in 1998. The difference in 2000

compared to 1999 was principally due to higher equity and interest income in 2000 and charges in

1999 related to legal actions. The difference in 1999 compared to 1998 was principally due to

higher charges related to legal actions and lower interest income.

Income before income taxes in 2000 was $506.6 million compared to $770.3 million in 1999

and $594.2 million in 1998.

The provision for income taxes in 2000 was $172.3 million (34.0% effective tax rate)

compared to $269.5 million (35.0% effective tax rate) in 1999 and $217.8 million (36.7% effective

tax rate) in 1998. It is expected that the effective tax rate will be 33.0% for 2001. The declines in

the effective tax rate are principally due to tax planning strategies.

In 1999, the Securities and Exchange Commission issued Staff Accounting Bulletin 

No. 101, “Revenue Recognition in Financial Statements.” Its adoption had no effect on the

company’s consolidated financial position, consolidated results of operations, or liquidity.

In June 1998, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Statement of

Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and

Hedging Activities.” This statement, which is effective for the company for the year beginning

January 1, 2001, establishes accounting and reporting standards for derivative instruments and

hedging activities. SFAS No. 133 requires a company to recognize all derivatives as either assets or

liabilities in the statement of financial position and measure those instruments at fair value.

Changes in the fair value of derivatives will be reported currently in earnings or other

comprehensive income depending on their effectiveness pursuant to SFAS No. 133. Adoption of

SFAS No. 133 will not have a material effect on the company’s consolidated financial position,

consolidated results of operations, or liquidity.

In September 2000, the FASB issued SFAS No. 140, “Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of

Financial Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities.” This statement revises the accounting

standards for securitizations and other transfers of financial assets and collateral and requires

certain disclosures. This statement is effective for transfers and servicing of financial assets

occurring after March 31, 2001. Management is evaluating what effect, if any, this statement may

have on the company’s financial statements.
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Financial condition

Cash and cash equivalents at December 31, 2000 were $378.0 million compared to $464.0 million

at December 31, 1999.

During 2000, cash provided by operations was $419.9 million compared to $517.6 million in

1999, principally reflecting a decline in profitability. The improvement in the accounts receivable

performance in 2000 reflected the sale of approximately $230 million of receivables through a

new U.S. securitization facility. The new facility, which is renewable annually for up to three

years, allows for the sale of up to $275 million of U.S. receivables. Cash expenditures related to

both current and prior-year restructuring actions (which are included in operating activities) in

2000, 1999, and 1998 were $26.3 million, $44.6 million, and $118.4 million, respectively, and are

expected to be approximately $70 million in 2001 and $10 million in total for all subsequent

years, principally for work-force reductions and facility costs. Personnel reductions in 2000

related to restructuring actions were approximately 1,300 and are expected to be approximately

700 in 2001.

Cash used for investing activities in 2000 was $270.9 million compared to $328.4 million for

1999. During 2000, both proceeds from investments and purchase of investments, which

represent primarily foreign exchange hedging contract activity, declined from the prior year as a

result of extending the duration of individual contracts to more closely match the timeframe of

related underlying exposures. This change in duration of foreign currency contracts did not

significantly impact net cash flows. In addition, 2000 reflects lower cash usage for purchases of

businesses and, as described below, $18.5 million net proceeds from the termination of the euro

and yen swaps.

Cash used for financing activities during 2000 was $217.3 million compared to cash usage of

$328.4 million in 1999. Included in 2000 were net proceeds from short-term borrowings of

$179.6 million, principally borrowings used to repay long-term debt of $448.0 million, as

described below. Included in 1999 were payments of $197.0 million for redemptions of preferred

stock, $164.4 million related to repayment of long-term debt, and $59.4 million for preferred

stock dividends.

At December 31, 2000, total debt was $762.6 million, a decrease of $237.4 million from

December 31, 1999. At December 31, 2000, the debt-to-capital ratio was 25.9% compared to

33.9% at December 31, 1999.

The company has a $400 million credit agreement which expires June 2001. As of December

31, 2000, there were no borrowings outstanding under this agreement and the entire $400

million was available for borrowings.

In April 2000, the company redeemed all of its $399.5 million outstanding 12% senior notes

due 2003 at the stated redemption price of 106% of principal. As a result, the company recorded

an extraordinary after-tax charge of $19.8 million, or $.06 per diluted share, for the call

premium and unamortized debt expense. The redemption was funded through a combination

of cash and short-term borrowings. In March 2000, the company entered into an additional $150

million credit agreement expiring April 2001 for the purpose of funding this redemption. As of

December 31, 2000, $127.5 million was borrowed under this agreement at a rate of 7.56%.



The company may, from time to time, redeem, tender for, or repurchase its debt securities in

the open market or in privately negotiated transactions depending upon availability, market

conditions, and other factors.

During 1999, all shares of the company’s Series A cumulative convertible preferred stock were

either converted into the company’s common stock or redeemed for cash in response to various

calls by the company. These actions eliminated all $1.4 billion of Series A preferred stock (28.4

million shares) and $106.5 million of annual dividend payments. Overall in 1999, of the 28.4

million shares of Series A preferred stock that were outstanding at the beginning of the year, 24.5

million shares were converted into 40.8 million shares of common stock and 3.9 million shares

were redeemed for $197.0 million in cash.

In 2000, the company terminated its interest rate swaps and currency swaps for euro and

Japanese yen which were established in 1999. The currency swaps were designated as hedges of the

foreign currency exposure on the company’s net investments in foreign subsidiaries and equity

investments. As a result of these terminations, the company received net cash of $18.5 million and

recognized a pretax loss of $2.7 million. The interest expense benefit related to these swaps

amounted to approximately $16 million in 2000.

The company has on file with the Securities and Exchange Commission an effective

registration statement covering $700 million of debt or equity securities, which enables the

company to be prepared for future market opportunities.

At December 31, 2000, the company had deferred tax assets in excess of deferred tax liabilities

of $1,299 million. For the reasons cited below, management determined that it is more likely than

not that $990 million of such assets will be realized, therefore resulting in a valuation allowance

of $309 million.

The company evaluates quarterly the realizability of its deferred tax assets and adjusts the

amount of the related valuation allowance, if necessary. The factors used to assess the likelihood

of realization are the company’s forecast of future taxable income, and available tax planning

strategies that could be implemented to realize deferred tax assets. Approximately $3.0 billion of

future taxable income (predominantly U.S.) is needed to realize all of the net deferred tax assets.

Failure to achieve forecasted taxable income might affect the ultimate realization of the net

deferred tax assets. See “Factors that may affect future results” below.

Stockholders’ equity increased $232.8 million during 2000, principally reflecting net income

of $225.0 million, $69.4 million for issuance of stock under stock option and other plans and $11.3

million of tax benefits related to employee stock plans, offset in part by currency translation of

$73.3 million.
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Market risk

The company has exposure to interest rate risk from its short-term and long-term debt. In

general, the company’s long-term debt is fixed rate and the short-term debt is variable rate. See

Note 10 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for components of the company’s

long-term debt. The company believes that the market risk from changes in interest rates would

not be material to the fair value of these financial instruments, or the related cash flows, or future

results of operations.

The company is also exposed to foreign currency exchange rate risks. The company uses

derivative financial instruments to reduce its exposure to market risks from changes in foreign

currency exchange rates. The derivative instruments used are foreign exchange forward contracts

and foreign exchange options. The company does not hold or issue derivatives for speculative

trading purposes. See Note 13 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for additional

information on the company’s derivative financial instruments.

The company has performed a sensitivity analysis assuming a hypothetical 10% adverse

movement in foreign currency exchange rates applied to these derivative financial instruments

described above. As of December 31, 2000 and 1999, the analysis indicated that such market

movements would have reduced the estimated fair value of these derivative financial instruments

by approximately $10 million and $70 million, respectively. Based on changes in the timing and

amount of interest rate and foreign currency exchange rate movements and the company’s actual

exposures and hedges, actual gains and losses in the future may differ from the above analysis.

Conversion to the euro currency

On January 1, 1999, certain member countries of the European Union established fixed conversion

rates between their existing currencies and the European Union’s common currency (the “euro”).

The transition period for the introduction of the euro began on January 1, 1999. The company is

addressing the issues involved with the introduction of the euro. The more important issues

facing the company include converting information technology systems, reassessing currency risk,

and negotiating and amending agreements.

Based on progress to date, the company believes that the use of the euro will not have a

significant impact on the manner in which it conducts its business. Accordingly, conversion to the

euro is not expected to have a material effect on the company’s consolidated financial position,

consolidated results of operations, or liquidity.



Factors that may affect future results

From time to time, the company provides information containing “forward-looking” statements,

as defined in the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. All forward-looking statements

rely on assumptions and are subject to risks, uncertainties, and other factors that could cause the

company’s actual results to differ materially from expectations. In addition to changes in general

economic and business conditions and natural disasters, these include, but are not limited to, the

factors discussed below.

The company operates in an industry characterized by aggressive competition, rapid

technological change, evolving technology standards, and short product life cycles.

Future operating results will depend on the company’s ability to design, develop, introduce,

deliver, or obtain new products and services on a timely and cost-effective basis; the success of the

actions taken to focus on higher growth, higher-margin e-business opportunities; on its ability to

effectively manage the shift in its technology business into higher growth, standards-based server

products; on its ability to mitigate the effects of competitive pressures and volatility in the

information technology and services industry on revenues, pricing, and margins; and on its

ability to successfully attract and retain highly skilled people. In addition, future operating results

could be impacted by market demand for and acceptance of the company’s service and product

offerings.

Certain of the company’s systems integration contracts are fixed-price contracts under which

the company assumes the risk for delivery of the contracted services at an agreed-upon price.

Future results will depend on the company’s ability to profitably perform these services contracts

and bid and obtain new contracts.

The company frequently forms alliances with third parties that have complementary

products, services, or skills. Future results will depend in part on the continuing relationships

with, and on the performance and capabilities of, these third parties. Future results will also

depend upon the ability of external suppliers to deliver components at reasonable prices and in a

timely manner and on the financial condition of, and the company’s relationship with,

distributors and other indirect channel partners.

Approximately 58% of the company’s total revenue derives from international operations.

The risks of doing business internationally include foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations,

changes in political or economic conditions, trade protections measures, and import or export

licensing requirements.
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Unisys Corporation

Consolidated Financial Statements

Consolidated Statement of Income
Year Ended December 31 (Millions, except per share data) 2000 1999 1998

Revenue $6,885.0 $7,544.6 $7,243.9

Costs and expenses

Cost of revenue 4,795.9 4,859.9 4,775.9

Selling, general and administrative expenses 1,328.7 1,384.6 1,360.7

Research and development expenses 333.6 339.4 308.3

6,458.2 6,583.9 6,444.9

Operating income 426.8 960.7 799.0

Interest expense 79.8 127.8 171.7

Other income (expense), net 32.0 (62.6) (33.1)

Income before income taxes 379.0 770.3 594.2

Provision for income taxes 134.2 247.5 217.8

Income before extraordinary items 244.8 522.8 376.4

Extraordinary items (19.8) (12.1)

Net income 225.0 510.7 376.4

Dividends on preferred shares 36.7 106.5

Earnings on common shares $ 225.0 $ 474.0 $ 269.9

Earnings (loss) per common share – basic

Before extraordinary items $ .78 $ 1.69 $ 1.07

Extraordinary items (.06) (.04)

Total $ .72 $ 1.65 $ 1.07

Earnings (loss) per common share – diluted

Before extraordinary items $ .77 $ 1.63 $ 1.01

Extraordinary items (.06) (.04)

Total $ .71 $ 1.59 $ 1.01

See notes to consolidated financial statements.



Unisys Corporation

Consolidated Balance Sheet
December 31 (Millions) 2000 1999

Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 378.0 $ 464.0
Accounts and notes receivable, net 1,247.4 1,430.5
Inventories

Parts and finished equipment 249.4 236.8
Work in process and materials 176.1 136.1

Deferred income taxes 460.6 472.7
Other current assets 75.5 105.6

Total 2,587.0 2,845.7

Properties 1,584.1 1,723.0
Less – Accumulated depreciation 963.9 1,102.2

Properties, net 620.2 620.8

Investments at equity 225.8 225.5

Software, net of accumulated amortization 296.7 259.8

Prepaid pension cost 1,063.0 975.9

Deferred income taxes 583.6 655.6

Other assets 341.4 306.4

Total $ 5,717.7 $ 5,889.7

Liabilities and stockholders’ equity
Current liabilities
Notes payable $ 209.5 $ 26.9
Current maturities of long-term debt 16.8 22.9
Accounts payable 847.7 833.2
Other accrued liabilities 1,323.5 1,386.6
Income taxes payable 288.3 348.9

Total 2,685.8 2,618.5

Long-term debt 536.3 950.2

Other liabilities 309.5 367.7

Stockholders’ equity
Common stock, shares issued: 2000 – 317.3; 1999 – 312.5 3.2 3.1
Accumulated deficit (829.4) (1,054.4)
Other capital 3,656.0 3,575.0
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (643.7) (570.4)

Stockholders’ equity 2,186.1 1,953.3

Total $ 5,717.7 $ 5,889.7

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Unisys Corporation

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
Year Ended December 31 (Millions) 2000 1999 1998

Cash flows from operating activities
Income before extraordinary items $ 244.8 $ 522.8 $ 376.4

Add (deduct) items to reconcile income before extraordinary
items to net cash provided by operating activities:

Extraordinary items (19.8) (12.1)
Depreciation 143.0 141.8 149.2

Amortization:

Marketable software 115.5 110.9 112.3

Goodwill 12.5 12.5 8.9
Decrease (increase) in deferred income taxes, net 85.6 (9.9) (26.7)
Decrease (increase) in receivables, net 158.2 (244.5) (277.3)
(Increase) decrease in inventories (52.5) 98.0 94.4
(Decrease) increase in accounts payable and other accrued liabilities (136.1) (81.8) 103.1
(Decrease) increase in income taxes payable (62.8) 78.2 148.0
(Decrease) increase in other liabilities (6.4) (2.2) 13.2
(Increase) in other assets (69.2) (159.2) (57.6)
Other 7.1 63.1 (1.7)

Net cash provided by operating activities 419.9 517.6 642.2

Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from investments 790.4 1,033.8 1,991.0
Purchases of investments (716.7) (1,013.8) (2,006.5)
Proceeds from sales of properties 20.0 47.9 51.1
Investment in marketable software (152.4) (122.8) (100.3)
Capital additions of properties (198.3) (219.6) (209.1)
Purchases of businesses (13.9) (53.9) (3.9)

Net cash (used for) investing activities (270.9) (328.4) (277.7)

Cash flows from financing activities
Payments of long-term debt (448.0) (164.4) (749.2)
Net proceeds from (reduction in) short-term borrowings 179.6 (25.6) 9.6
Proceeds from employee stock plans 51.1 87.7 79.5
Dividends paid on preferred shares (59.4) (106.5)
Redemption of preferred stock (197.0)
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt 30.3 197.3

Net cash (used for) financing activities (217.3) (328.4) (569.3)

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (17.7) (13.2) (3.0)

Decrease in cash and cash equivalents (86.0) (152.4) (207.8)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 464.0 616.4 824.2

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 378.0 $ 464.0 $ 616.4

See notes to consolidated financial statements.



Unisys Corporation

Consolidated Statement of Stockholders’ Equity
Other, Accumulated

Principally Other Comprehensive
Preferred Common Accumulated Treasury Paid-In Comprehensive Income

(Millions) Stock Stock Deficit Stock Capital Income (Loss)* (Loss)

Balance at December 31, 1997 $ 1,438.2 $2.5 $(1,802.1) $(12.2) $2,049.6 $(448.1)

Conversions to common stock (.1) .5

Conversion of shareholder notes 6.6

Issuance of stock under stock

option and other plans .1 (11.4) 90.2

Net income 376.4 $ 376.4

Other comprehensive income –
translation adjustments (83.5) (83.5)

Comprehensive income $ 292.9

Dividends (106.5)

Unearned compensation 4.8

Tax benefit related to stock plans 30.6

Balance at December 31, 1998 1,444.7 2.6 (1,532.2) (23.6) 2,175.7 (531.6) (911.6

Conversions to common stock (1,245.3) .4 1,271.2

Redemption of preferred stock (197.0)

Issuance of stock under stock
option and other plans .1 (17.8) 103.4

Net income 510.7 $ 510.7

Other comprehensive income –

translation adjustments (38.8) (38.8)

Comprehensive income $ 471.9

Dividends (32.9)

Tax benefit related to stock plans 66.1

Other (2.4)
)

Balance at December 31, 1999 – 3.1 (1,054.4) (41.4) 3,616.4 (570.4) (911.6

Issuance of stock under stock
option and other plans .1 (.7) 70.0

Net income 225.0 $ 225.0

Other comprehensive income –

translation adjustments (73.3) (73.3)

Comprehensive income $ 151.7

Unearned compensation .4

Tax benefit related to stock plans 11.3
)

Balance at December 31, 2000 $ – $3.2 $ (829.4) $(42.1) $3,698.1 $(643.7)

*Entire amount relates to foreign currency translation adjustments.

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Unisys Corporation

Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements

Advertising costs The company
expenses all advertising costs as they are
incurred. The amount charged to expense
during 2000, 1999, and 1998 was $38.2,
$48.6, and $48.2 million, respectively.
Revenue recognition The company
generally recognizes revenue when persua-
sive evidence of an arrangement exists,
delivery has occurred, the fee is fixed or
determinable, and collectibility is probable.

Revenue from hardware sales is recog-
nized upon shipment and the passage of title.
Outside of the United States, the company
recognizes revenue even if it retains a form 
of title to products delivered to customers,
provided the sole purpose is to enable the
company to recover the products in the 
event of customer payment default, and the 
arrangement does not prohibit the customers’
use of the product in the ordinary course 
of business.

Revenue from software licenses is recog-
nized at the inception of the initial license
term and upon execution of an extension to
the license term. Revenue for post-contract
software support arrangements, which are
marketed separately, is recorded on a straight-
line basis over the support period for multi-
year contracts and at the inception of
contracts of one year or less.

Revenue from equipment and software
maintenance is recognized on a straight-line
basis as earned over the lives of the 
respective contracts.

For equipment leased to a customer under
an operating lease or a sales-type lease, rev-
enue recognition commences when the
equipment has been shipped, installed and is
ready for use. Revenue for operating leases is
recognized on a monthly basis over the term
of the lease and for sales-type leases at the
inception of the lease term.

Summary of significant
accounting policies
Principles of consolidation The
consolidated financial statements include the
accounts of all majority-owned subsidiaries.
Investments in companies representing
ownership interests of 20% to 50% are
accounted for by the equity method.
Use of estimates The preparation 
of financial statements in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the amounts reported
in the financial statements and accompanying
notes. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.
Cash equivalents All short-term
investments purchased with a maturity of
three months or less are classified as cash
equivalents.
Inventories Inventories are valued at the
lower of cost or market. Cost is determined
principally on the first-in, first-out method.
Properties and depreciation
Properties are carried at cost and are
depreciated over the estimated lives of 
such assets using the straight-line method.
Outsourcing equipment is depreciated over 
the shorter of the asset life or the term of the
contract. For other classifications of properties,
the principal rates used are summarized below:

Rate per Year (%)

Buildings 2-5

Machinery and office equipment 5-25

Rental equipment 25

1
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Revenue under systems integration and
services contracts is recognized on the per-
centage of completion method of accounting
using the cost-to-cost method or when
services have been performed and accepted,
depending on the nature of the project.

Accounting for large multi-year, fixed-price
systems integration contracts involves
considerable use of estimates in determining 
revenue, costs, and profits. Revisions in profit
estimates are reflected in the period in which
the facts that give rise to the revision become
known. When estimates indicate a loss under
a contract, cost of revenue is charged with a
provision for such loss. 
Income taxes Income taxes are 
provided on taxable income at the statutory
rates applicable to such income. Deferred
taxes have not been provided on the
cumulative undistributed earnings of foreign
subsidiaries because such amounts are
expected to be reinvested indefinitely.
Marketable software The cost of
development of computer software to 
be sold or leased, incurred subsequent to
establishment of technological feasibility, is
capitalized and amortized to cost of sales over
the estimated revenue-producing lives of the
products, but not in excess of three years
following product release. 
Goodwill Goodwill represents the excess
of cost over fair value of net assets acquired,
which is being amortized on the straight-line
method. Accumulated amortization at
December 31, 2000 and 1999 was $26.0 and
$14.4 million, respectively.

The carrying value of goodwill is reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that it may not be
recoverable. If such an event occurred, the
company would prepare projections of future
cash flows for the applicable business. If 
such projections indicated that goodwill 
would not be recoverable, the company’s
carrying value of such asset would be reduced
by the estimated excess of such value over
projected discounted cash flow.
Translation of foreign currency
The local currency is the functional currency
for most of the company’s international
subsidiaries and, as such, assets and liabilities
are translated into U.S. dollars at year-end
exchange rates. Income and expense items
are translated at average exchange rates
during the year. Translation adjustments
resulting from changes in exchange rates 
are reported in other comprehensive income.
Exchange gains and losses on intercompany
balances of a long-term investment nature are
reported in other comprehensive income.

For those international subsidiaries
operating in hyper-inflationary economies, 
the U.S. dollar is the functional currency and,
as such, non-monetary assets and liabilities
are translated at historical exchange rates and
monetary assets and liabilities are translated
at current exchange rates. Exchange gains
and losses arising from translation are
included in other income (expense), net.
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Derivative financial instruments
The derivative financial instruments currently
used by the company are foreign exchange
forward contracts and options. The company
does not hold or issue derivatives for specula-
tive trading purposes. 

A change in the underlying exchange rate
would have no impact on financial position or
results of operations relating to these financial
instruments. All of the company’s foreign cur-
rency contracts and options have been desig-
nated as and are effective as hedges against
specific exposures and have been accounted
for as such. Therefore, a change in the
derivative’s value would be offset by an
opposite change in the hedged exposure.

The company monitors its risks in
derivative transactions by periodically
assessing the cost of replacing, at market
rates, those contracts in the event of default
by the counterparty. The company believes
such risk to be remote. In addition, before
entering into derivative contracts, and
periodically during the life of the contract, 
the company reviews the counterparties’ 
financial condition.

Gains or losses on foreign exchange
forward contracts and the cost of foreign
currency options are deferred in current
liabilities and other current assets, respec-
tively. The cost of options is reported in
income ratably over the option term, and any
gains thereon as well as any gains or losses
on foreign exchange contracts are recognized
in income (either in revenue or cost of
revenue) when the transactions being 
hedged are recognized. Cash flows on such
instruments are reported in investing activities
as proceeds or purchases of investments.

If the criteria for hedge accounting
discussed above were not met, gains 
or losses on these instruments would be
included in income currently and would not 
be deferred. If a derivative financial instrument
is terminated before the transaction date of
the hedged transaction, any deferred gain or
loss would continue to be deferred until the
transaction date. If an expected transaction 
is no longer likely to occur, any deferred gains
or losses on financial instruments that hedge 
such a transaction would be reported in
income immediately.
Reclassifications Certain prior-year
amounts have been reclassified to conform
with the 2000 presentation.
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2 Earnings per share
The following table shows how earnings per share were computed for the three years ended 
December 31, 2000.

Year ended December 31 
(Millions, except per share data) 2000 1999 1998

Basic earnings per share computation

Income before extraordinary items $ 244.8 $ 522.8 $ 376.4

Less dividends on preferred shares (36.7) (106.5)

Income available to common stockholders before extraordinary items 244.8 486.1 269.9

Extraordinary items (19.8) (12.1)

Net income available to common stockholders $ 225.0 $ 474.0 $ 269.9

Weighted average shares (thousands) 313,115 287,290 253,335

Basic earnings per share

Before extraordinary items $ .78 $ 1.69 $ 1.07

Extraordinary items (.06) (.04)

Total $ .72 $ 1.65 $ 1.07

Diluted earnings per share computation

Income available to common stockholders before extraordinary items $ 244.8 $ 486.1 $ 269.9

Plus interest expense on assumed conversion of 
8 1/4% Convertible Notes, net of tax .3 1.5

Income available to common stockholders
plus assumed conversions before extraordinary items 244.8 486.4 271.4

Extraordinary items (19.8) (12.1)

Net income available to common stockholders $ 225.0 $ 474.3 $ 271.4

Weighted average shares (thousands) 313,115 287,290 253,335

Plus incremental shares from assumed conversions:

Preferred stock 877 1,350

Employee stock plans 3,536 9,835 11,164

8 1/4% Convertible Notes 818 3,994

Adjusted weighted average shares 316,651 298,820 269,843

Diluted earnings per share

Before extraordinary items $ .77 $ 1.63 $ 1.01

Extraordinary items (.06) (.04)

Total $ .71 $ 1.59 $ 1.01

The shares listed below were not included in the computation of diluted earnings per share because to do so would 
have been antidilutive for the periods presented.

Year ended December 31 (thousands) 2000 1999 1998

Employee stock plans 16,073 6,680 101

Preferred stock 47,448



Accounting changes
In 1999, the Securities and Exchange
Commission issued Staff Accounting Bulletin 
No. 101, “Revenue Recognition in Financial
Statements.” Its adoption had no effect on
the company’s consolidated financial position,
consolidated results of operations, or liquidity.

In June 1998, the Financial Accounting
Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Statement
of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”)
No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instru-
ments and Hedging Activities.” This state-
ment, which is effective for the company for
the year beginning January 1, 2001, estab-
lishes accounting and reporting standards for
derivative instruments and for hedging activi-
ties. SFAS No. 133 requires a company to rec-
ognize all derivatives as either assets or
liabilities in the statement of financial position
and measure those instruments at fair value.
Changes in the fair value of derivatives will be
reported currently in earnings or in other com-
prehensive income depending on their effec-
tiveness pursuant to SFAS No. 133. Adoption
of SFAS No. 133 will not have a material
effect on the company’s consolidated financial
position, consolidated results of operations, or
liquidity.

In September 2000, the FASB issued SFAS
No. 140, “Accounting for Transfers and Ser-
vicing of Financial Assets and Extinguish-
ments of Liabilities.” This statement revises
the accounting standards for securitizations
and other transfers of financial assets and col-
lateral and requires certain disclosures. This
statement is effective for transfers and ser-
vicing of financial assets occurring after March
31, 2001. Management is evaluating what
effect, if any, this statement may have on the
company’s financial statements.

3 4Acquisitions
During 2000, the company acquired the
following companies: Network Plus Limited, 
a London-based desktop and network services
consulting company; VeriCom, a Norwegian
information technology consulting company;
and QCOM, an Australian information tech-
nology services provider. These companies
were acquired for an aggregate cash purchase 
price of approximately $20 million and were
accounted for under the purchase method 
of accounting.

In addition during 2000, the company
formed a new company with BankWest, 
a full-service bank with its headquarters in
Perth, Western Australia. The new company,
called Unisys West, will provide e-business
services to businesses and governments.
Unisys also formed a new company called 
Intelligent Processing Solutions Limited
(“iPSL”), a UK-based company, which will pro-
vide high-volume payment processing. The
company’s partners in iPSL are Barclays Bank
and Lloyds TSB Bank, both UK-based financial
institutions. Both of the above new compa-
nies are 51% owned by the company and 
are fully consolidated in the company’s finan-
cial statements. The minority owners’ inter-
ests are represented in other liabilities and
other income (expense), net in the financial
statements.

During 1999, the company acquired three
companies for an aggregate cash purchase
price of approximately $60 million. These 
acquisitions were accounted for under the
purchase method of accounting. During 1999,
the company also acquired three companies in
exchange for approximately 2.9 million shares
of the company’s common stock. These
acquisitions were accounted for under the
pooling of interests method of accounting,
and all prior periods were restated.
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One-time charges
2000 restructuring As a result of a
comprehensive business review of the com-
pany’s operations, the company has decided to
focus its resources on value-added, e-business
opportunities, de-emphasize or eliminate low-
return businesses, and lower its cost base in
line with its new business model.  As a result,
in the fourth quarter of 2000, the company
recorded a pretax restructuring charge of
$127.6 million, or $.29 per diluted share, pri-
marily for a work-force reduction of approxi-
mately 2,000 people (1,400 in the United
States and 600 outside the United States). 
Of the total, approximately 1,300 people were
terminated in 2000 with the remaining 700 to
leave in 2001. In 2000, 742 people, included
above, accepted an early retirement program in
the United States. For those employees,
funding will be provided through the company’s
pension plan. Cash expenditures related to the
involuntary reductions in 2000 were $8.7 mil-
lion. A further breakdown of the individual 
components of these costs follows:

Work-Force Reductions(1)

(Millions) Total U. S. Int’l Other (2)

Work-force
reductions (1)

Early retirement $ 57.8 $57.8

Involuntary 
reductions 60.9 13.3 $47.6

Subtotal 118.7 71.1 47.6

Other (2) 8.9 $8.9

Total charge 127.6 71.1 47.6 8.9

Utilized (71.9) (58.7) (7.8) (5.4)

Balance at
Dec. 31, 2000 $ 55.7 $12.4 $39.8 $3.5

Expected future
utilization:

2001 $ 51.9 $12.2 $36.8 $2.9

2002 and
thereafter 3.8 .2 3.0 .6

(1) Includes severance, notice pay, medical, and other benefits.
(2) Includes facilities costs, and product and program discontinuances.

5

Prior year restructurings   In 1997
and 1995, the company recorded total pretax
restructuring charges of $113.6 million and
$717.6 million, respectively, for a total of
$831.2 million. The charges were related to
strategic realignments, the discontinuance of
the manufacturing and assembly of personal
computers and low-end servers, and the dis-
posal of a small, non-strategic technology
product. The charges included (a) $501.5 mil-
lion for work-force reductions of approxi-
mately 8,900 people, (b) $221.1 million for
consolidation of facilities and manufacturing
capacity, and (c) $108.6 million for product and
program discontinuances. 

Activity related to these restructuring
actions during the years ended December 31,
2000, 1999, and 1998, was as follows:

Work-Force
(Millions) Total Reductions(1) Facilities(2) Products

Balance at
Dec. 31, 1997 $ 253.6 $ 130.5 $103.2 $19.9

Utilized (127.3) (80.0) (36.0) (11.3)

Other(3) (18.8) (7.5) (10.8) (.5)

Balance at
Dec. 31, 1998 107.5 43.0 56.4 8.1

Utilized (48.8) (23.1) (22.3) (3.4)

Other(3) (1.5) 2.6 (3.4) (.7)

Balance at
Dec. 31, 1999 57.2 22.5 30.7 4.0

Utilized (20.8) (6.8) (13.2) (.8)

Other(3) (9.3) (2.1) (5.4) (1.8)

Balance at
Dec. 31, 2000 $ 27.1 $ 13.6 $ 12.1 $ 1.4

Expected future
utilization:

2001 $ 21.5 $ 13.6 $ 6.5 $ 1.4

2002 and
thereafter 5.6 5.6

(1) Includes severance, notice pay, medical, and other benefits.

(2) Includes consolidation of office facilities and manufacturing capacity.

(3) Includes changes in estimates, reversals of excess reserves, 
translation adjustments, and additional provisions.

The 2000 restructuring charge was recorded
in the following statement of income classifi-
cations: cost of revenue, $56.1 million; selling,
general and administrative expenses, $51.9
million; research and development expenses, 
$18.2 million; and other income (expense),
net, $1.4 million.



In 1998, there was a reduction in accrued
work-force provisions, principally for the
reversal of unneeded reserves due to
approximately 150 voluntary terminations, 
and the favorable results of negotiations on
termination indemnities relating principally 
to PC manufacturing personnel. In addition, 
as a result of the sale of the non-strategic
technology product operations in 1998 on
more favorable terms than originally antici-
pated, the company reversed $6.0 million of
unneeded accruals, principally for termination
indemnities for approximately 130 people.

As a result of the prior year restructuring
actions, cash expenditures in 2000, 1999 and
1998 were $17.6, $44.6, and $118.4 million,
respectively, and employee levels were
reduced in 2000, 1999, and 1998 by 21, 284,
and 900 people, respectively. The $13.6 mil-
lion balance of the reserve at December 31,
2000 for work-force reductions represents the
remaining balance of extended payment sev-
erance packages for terminated employees.
The $12.1 million December 31, 2000 balance
for facility consolidations represents contrac-
tual obligations (reduced by sub-lease income)
existing under long-term leases of vacated
facilities.

Accounts receivable 
In December 2000, the company entered into
an agreement, renewable annually for up to
three years, to sell through Unisys Funding Cor-
poration I, a wholly owned subsidiary, interests
in eligible U.S. trade accounts receivable for up
to $275 million. Unisys Funding Corporation I
has been structured to isolate its assets from
creditors of Unisys. The company received pro-
ceeds of $232 million from the initial sale of
accounts receivable interests under the pro-
gram, which has been included in cash flows
from operating activities in the accompanying
consolidated statement of cash flows. The 

6

46

company retained subordinated interests of
$223 million in the associated receivables,
which have been included in accounts and
notes receivable, net in the accompanying con-
solidated balance sheet. As collections reduce
previously sold interests, interests in new eli-
gible receivables can be sold, subject to
meeting certain conditions.  

The selling price of the receivables interests
reflects a discount based on the A-1 rated com-
mercial paper borrowing rates of the pur-
chasers (6.7% at December 31, 2000). The
company remains responsible for servicing the
underlying accounts receivable, for which it will
receive a fee of 0.5% of the outstanding bal-
ance, which it believes represents adequate
compensation. The company estimates the fair
value of its retained interests by considering
two key assumptions: the payment rate, which
is derived from the average life of the accounts
receivable which is less than 60 days, and the
rate of expected credit losses. Based on the
company’s favorable collection experience and
very short-term nature of the receivables, both
assumptions are considered to be highly pre-
dictable. Therefore, the company’s estimated
fair value of its retained interests in the pool of
eligible receivables is approximately equal to
the previous cost, less the associated
allowance for doubtful accounts. As a result,
the loss on the initial sale was not material. 

Revenue recognized in excess of billings on
services contracts, or unbilled accounts receiv-
able, was $171.3 and $217.8 million at
December 31, 2000 and 1999, respectively.
Such amounts are included in accounts and
notes receivables, net.
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7Income taxes

Year ended December 31 (Millions) 2000 1999 1998

Income before income taxes

United States $ 389.0 $ 485.4 $ 397.8

Foreign (10.0) 284.9 196.4

Total income before 
income taxes $ 379.0 $ 770.3 $ 594.2

Provision for income taxes 

Current

United States $ 10.1 $ 55.3 $ 55.8

Foreign 63.6 79.1 22.7

State and local 4.9 10.5 23.3

Total 78.6 144.9 101.8

Deferred

United States 72.8 75.7 115.2

Foreign (17.2) 24.4 .7

State and local 2.5 .1

Total 55.6 102.6 116.0

Total provision for income taxes $ 134.2 $ 247.5 $ 217.8

Year ended December 31 (Percent) 2000 1999 1998

United States statutory income
tax 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%

Difference in estimated income
taxes on foreign earnings, losses,
and remittances 9.6 .5 (7.7)

State taxes .8 1.2 2.5

Tax refund claims, audit issues, 
and other matters (10.4) (2.3) 5.3

Amortization of goodwill .5 .3 .3

U.S. tax law change (2.9)

Other (.1) .3 1.2

Provision for income taxes 35.4% 32.1% 36.6%

Following is a reconciliation of the provision
for income taxes at the United States statu-
tory tax rate to the provision for income taxes
as reported:

The tax effects of temporary differences
and carryforwards that give rise to significant
portions of deferred tax assets and liabilities
at December 31, 2000 and 1999, were as 
follows:

December 31 (Millions) 2000 1999

Deferred tax assets

Capitalized research and 
development $ 592.7 $ 596.1

Tax loss carryforwards 280.0 254.2

Foreign tax credit carryforwards 159.1 114.4

Other tax credit carryforwards 232.2 243.3

Prepayments 101.7 138.5

Postretirement benefits 80.1 82.4

Employee benefits 83.8 88.5

Depreciation 61.0 46.3

Restructuring 67.1 38.2

Other 242.6 281.7

1,900.3 1,883.6

Valuation allowance (309.2) (308.7)

Total deferred tax assets $1,591.1 $1,574.9

Deferred tax liabilities

Pensions $ 451.9 $ 383.4

Sales-type leases 85.2 77.4

Other 64.2 38.6

Total deferred tax liabilities $ 601.3 $ 499.4

Net deferred tax assets $ 989.8 $1,075.5

SFAS No. 109 requires that deferred tax
assets be reduced by a valuation allowance 
if it is more likely than not that some portion
or all of the deferred tax asset will not be
realized. The valuation allowance at December
31, 2000, applies to tax loss carryforwards and
temporary differences relating to state and
local and certain foreign tax jurisdictions that,
in management’s opinion, are more likely than
not to expire unused.

Cumulative undistributed earnings of
foreign subsidiaries, for which no U.S. 
income or foreign withholding taxes have 
been recorded, approximated $740.0 million 
at December 31, 2000. Such earnings are
expected to be reinvested indefinitely.
Determination of the amount of unrecognized
deferred tax liability with respect to such
earnings is not practicable. The additional
taxes payable on the earnings of foreign 



December 31 (Millions) 2000 1999

Land $ 8.3 $ 8.4

Buildings 148.0 164.4

Machinery and office equipment 1,207.7 1,323.0

Rental and outsourcing 
equipment 220.1 227.2

Total properties $1,584.1 $1,723.0

Investments at equity
Substantially all of the company’s 
investments at equity consist of Nihon Unisys,
Ltd., a Japanese company (“NUL”). At
December 31, 2000, the company owned
approximately 28% of NUL’s common 
stock that has a fair market value of
approximately $320 million. The company 
has approximately $174 million of retained
earnings that represents undistributed
earnings of NUL.

Debt
Long-term debt comprises the following:

8
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December 31 (Millions) 2000 1999

113⁄4% senior notes due 2004 $334.2 $ 334.2
77⁄8% senior notes due 2008 200.0 200.0
12% senior notes 399.5
Other, net of unamortized

discounts 18.9 39.4

Total 553.1 973.1
Less – Current maturities 16.8 22.9

Total long-term debt $536.3 $ 950.2

Properties
Properties comprise the following:
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subsidiaries, if remitted, would be substantially
offset by U.S. tax credits for foreign taxes
already paid. While there are no specific plans
to distribute the undistributed earnings in the
immediate future, where economically
appropriate to do so, such earnings may be
remitted.

Cash paid during 2000, 1999, and 1998 
for income taxes was $110.0, $96.6, and 
$92.7 million, respectively.

In 1999, the company recognized a one-
time tax benefit of $22.0 million, or $.07 per
diluted common share, related to a U.S. Trea-
sury income tax regulation pertaining to the
use of net operating loss carryforwards of
acquired companies.

At December 31, 2000, the company 
has U.S. federal and state and local tax 
loss carryforwards and foreign tax loss
carryforwards for certain foreign subsidiaries,
the tax effect of which is approximately
$280.0 million. These carryforwards will 
expire as follows (in millions): 2001, $5.9;
2002, $9.5; 2003, $12.7; 2004, $19.2; 2005,
$15.1; and $217.6 thereafter. The company 
also has available tax credit carryforwards 
of approximately $391.3 million, which will
expire as follows (in millions): 2001, $87.7;
2002, $56.7; 2003, $10.9; 2004, $7.7; 
2005, $24.6; and $203.7 thereafter.

The company’s net deferred tax assets
include substantial amounts of capitalized
research and development, and tax credit
carryforwards. Failure to achieve forecasted
taxable income might affect the ultimate
realization of the net deferred tax assets.
There can be no assurance that in the future
there would not be increased competition or
other factors that may result in a decline 
in sales or margins, loss of market share, 
delays in product availability, or technological
obsolescence.

The company is currently contesting 
issues before the Internal Revenue Service 
in connection with Sperry Corporation for 
the years ended March 31, 1985, through
September 16, 1986. In management’s
opinion, adequate provisions for income 
taxes have been made for all years.
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Total long-term debt maturities in 2001,
2002, 2003, 2004, and 2005 are $16.8, $1.7,
$.2, $334.4, and $.2 million, respectively.

Cash paid during 2000, 1999, and 1998 
for interest was $90.5, $141.5, and $185.6
million, respectively.

On April 15, 2000, the company redeemed
all of its $399.5 million outstanding 12%
senior notes due 2003 at the stated redemp-
tion price of 106% of principal. As a result, the
company recorded an extraordinary charge of
$19.8 million, net of $10.7 million of income
tax benefits, or $.06 per diluted share, for the
call premium and unamortized debt expense.
The redemption was funded through a combi-
nation of cash and short-term borrowings
under the company’s two credit agreements
discussed below.

During 1999, the company repurchased
$115.8 million principal amount of its 113⁄4%
senior notes due 2004 and $25.5 million
principal amount of its 12% senior notes due
2003 at a cost of $157.4 million. As a result,
the company recorded an extraordinary charge
of $12.1 million, net of $6.5 million of income
tax benefits, or $.04 per diluted common
share.

In March 2000, the company entered into a
$150 million credit agreement expiring April
2001 for the purpose of funding the redemp-
tion of its 12% senior notes. As of December
31, 2000, $127.5 million was borrowed under
this agreement at a rate of 7.56%. The com-
pany also has a $400 million credit agreement
expiring June 2001. As of December 31, 2000,
there were no borrowings outstanding under
the facility and the entire $400 million was
available for borrowings. The company pays
commitment fees on the total amount of the
facility. In addition, the company has access to
certain uncommitted lines of credit from U.S.
banks and international subsidiaries maintain
short-term credit arrangements with banks in
accordance with local customary practice.

12

December 31 (Millions) 2000 1999

Payrolls and commissions $ 314.7 $ 360.9

Customers’ deposits and 
prepayments 545.0 522.0

Taxes other than income taxes 120.2 113.5

Restructuring* 73.4 36.2

Other 270.2 354.0

Total other accrued liabilities $1,323.5 $1,386.6

*At December 31, 2000 and 1999, an additional $9.4 million and
$21.0 million, respectively, was reported in other liabilities (long
term) on the consolidated balance sheet.

Leases
Rental expense, less income from subleases,
for 2000, 1999, and 1998 was $126.6, $120.8,
and $118.8 million, respectively.

Minimum net rental commitments under
noncancelable operating leases outstanding at
December 31, 2000, substantially all of which
relate to real properties, were as follows: 2001,
$126.5; 2002, $107.1; 2003, $84.6; 2004,
$64.6; 2005, $42.3; and $271.5 million there-
after. Such rental commitments have been
reduced by minimum sublease rentals of $73.0
million due in the future under noncancelable
subleases.

11Other accrued liabilities
Other accrued liabilities (current) comprise 
the following:



The company also enters into foreign
exchange forward contracts. Gains and losses
on such contracts are deferred and included 
in current liabilities until the corresponding
transaction is recognized. At December 31,
2000, the company had a total of $217.0
million (of notional value) of foreign exchange
forward contracts, $168.3 million to sell
foreign currencies, and $48.7 million to buy
foreign currencies. At December 31, 1999, 
the company had a total of $264.7 million 
(of notional value) of such contracts, $237.0
million to sell foreign currencies, and $27.7
million to buy foreign currencies. At
December 31, 2000, a realized net gain on
such contracts of approximately $2.5 million
was deferred and included in current liabilities.
Gains or losses on foreign exchange forward
contracts are reported in income when the
related transactions being hedged (generally 
within three months except for yen contracts)
are recognized. 

In 1999, the company entered into interest
rate swaps and currency swaps for euros and
Japanese yen.  The currency swaps were des-
ignated as hedges of the foreign currency
exposure on the company’s net investments
in foreign subsidiaries and equity investments.
The currency effects of these hedges are
reflected in accumulated other comprehensive
income (loss) thereby offsetting a portion of
the foreign currency translation of net assets.
The difference between receipts of a U.S.
fixed rate of interest and payments of a for-
eign currency denominated floating rate is
reflected in interest expense. In 2000, the
company terminated these swaps, and as a
result received net cash of $18.5 million and
recognized a pretax loss of $2.7 million. 
Under the swaps, the company recognized 
an interest expense benefit of approximately 
$16 million and $7 million in 2000 and 1999,
respectively.
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Financial instruments
The company uses derivative financial
instruments to manage its exposure to 
market risks from changes in foreign currency
exchange rates. The derivative instruments
used are foreign exchange forward contracts
and foreign exchange options.

Due to its foreign operations, the company
is exposed to the effects of foreign currency
exchange rate fluctuations on the U.S. dollar.
Foreign exchange forward contracts and
options generally have maturities of three
months except for foreign exchange forward
contracts for Japanese yen which generally
have maturities of one year. These instruments
are entered into for the sole purpose of
hedging certain royalty income and cost 
exposures. 

The cost of foreign currency options 
is recorded in other current assets in the
consolidated balance sheet. At December 31,
2000, such amount was $.5 million. When the
U.S. dollar strengthens against foreign
currencies, the decline in value of the under-
lying exposures is partially offset by gains 
in the value of purchased currency options
designated as hedges. When the U.S. dollar
weakens, the increase in the value of the
underlying exposures is reduced only by 
the premium paid to purchase the options.
The cost of options is reported in income
ratably over the option term, and any gains
thereon are reported in income when the
related transactions being hedged (generally 
within six months) are recognized.

13



December 31 (Millions) 2000 1999

Outstanding:

Long-term debt $ 553.1 $ 973.1

Foreign exchange forward contracts* 217.0 264.7

Foreign exchange options* 63.9 288.2

Interest rate swaps* – 400.0

Foreign currency swaps* – 400.0

Estimated fair value:

Long-term debt $ 557.0 $1,021.2

Foreign exchange forward contracts 3.0 (1.9)

Foreign exchange options .2 8.4

Interest rate swaps – 3.4

Foreign currency swaps – (27.2)

*notional value
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Financial instruments also include
temporary cash investments and customer
accounts receivable. Temporary investments
are placed with creditworthy financial institu-
tions, primarily in over-securitized treasury
repurchase agreements, euro-time deposits, 
or commercial paper of major corporations. 
At December 31, 2000, the company’s cash
equivalents principally have maturities of 
less than one month. Due to the short
maturities of these instruments, they are
carried on the balance sheet at cost plus
accrued interest, which approximates 
market value. Realized gains or losses 
during 2000 and 1999, as well as unrealized
gains or losses at December 31, 2000, 
were immaterial. Receivables are due 
from a large number of customers that are 
dispersed worldwide across many industries.
At December 31, 2000 and 1999, the
company had no significant concentrations 
of credit risk.

Financial instruments comprise the
following:

The carrying amount of cash and cash
equivalents, and notes payable approximates
fair value because of the short maturity of
these instruments. The fair value of the com-
pany’s long-term debt is based on the quoted
market prices for publicly traded issues. For
debt that is not publicly traded, the fair value
is estimated, after considering any conversion
terms, based on current yields to maturity for
the company’s publicly traded debt with sim-
ilar maturities. In estimating the fair value of
its derivative positions, the company utilizes
quoted market prices, if available, or quotes
obtained from outside sources.

Litigation
There are various lawsuits, claims, and
proceedings that have been brought or
asserted against the company. Although the
ultimate results of these lawsuits, claims, and
proceedings are not currently determinable,
management does not expect that these
matters will have a material adverse effect on
the company’s consolidated financial position,
consolidated results of operations, or liquidity.

14
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Segment information
The company has two business segments:
Services and Technology. The products and
services of each segment are marketed
throughout the world to commercial
businesses and governments. The major
service and product lines by segment are 
as follows: Services – systems integration and
solutions, outsourcing, network services, and 
multivendor maintenance; Technology –
enterprise-class servers and specialized
technologies.

The accounting policies of each business
segment are the same as those described 
in the summary of significant accounting
policies. Intersegment sales and transfers are
priced as if the sales or transfers were to third
parties. The company evaluates business seg-
ment performance on operating income exclu-
sive of restructuring charges and unusual 
and nonrecurring items. All corporate and 
centrally incurred costs are allocated to 
the business segments based principally 
on assets, revenue, employees, square
footage, or usage.

Corporate assets are principally cash 
and cash equivalents, prepaid pension 
assets, and deferred income taxes. The
expense or income related to corporate 
assets are allocated to the business seg-
ments. In addition, corporate assets include
an offset for accounts receivable that have
been recorded as sales in accordance with 
SFAS No. 125 because such receivables 
are included in the assets of the business
segments.

No single customer accounts for more 
than 10% of revenue. Revenue from various
agencies of the U.S. Government, which is
reported in both business segments,
approximated $689, $865, and $917 million 
in 2000, 1999, and 1998, respectively.

(Millions of dollars) Total Corporate Services Technology

2000

Customer revenue $6,885.0 $ 4,741.6 $ 2,143.4
Intersegment $ (437.2) 46.6 390.6

Total revenue $6,885.0 $ (437.2) $ 4,788.2 $ 2,534.0

Operating income 
(loss) $ 426.8 $ (103.3) $ 81.4 $ 448.7

Depreciation and
amortization 271.0 116.7 154.3

Total assets 5,717.7 2,438.8 1,989.0 1,289.9
Investments at 

equity 225.8 1.7 224.1
Capital expenditures 

for properties 198.3 21.4 111.9 65.0

1999

Customer revenue $7,544.6 $ 5,287.0 $ 2,257.6
Intersegment $ (577.5) 65.6 511.9

Total revenue $7,544.6 $ (577.5) $ 5,352.6 $ 2,769.5

Operating income 
(loss) $ 960.7 $ (23.6) $ 421.0 $ 563.3

Depreciation and
amortization 265.2 115.1 150.1

Total assets 5,889.7 2,754.9 1,991.8 1,143.0
Investments at 

equity 225.5 1.8 223.7
Capital expenditures 

for properties 219.6 59.9 97.8 61.9

1998

Customer revenue $7,243.9 $ 4,944.8 $ 2,299.1
Intersegment $ (511.2) 73.7 437.5

Total revenue $7,243.9 $ (511.2) $ 5,018.5 $ 2,736.6

Operating income 
(loss) $ 799.0 $ (45.3) $ 332.3 $ 512.0

Depreciation and
amortization 270.4 88.1 182.3

Total assets 5,613.2 2,717.8 1,837.6 1,057.8
Investments at 

equity 184.6 2.1 182.5
Capital expenditures 

for properties 209.1 44.2 86.5 78.4

15 A summary of the company’s operations 
by business segment for 2000, 1999, and
1998 is presented below:



December 31 (Millions) 2000 1999 1998

Total segment assets $3,278.9 $3,134.8 $2,895.4

Cash and cash equivalents 378.0 464.0 616.4

Prepaid pension assets 1,063.0 975.9 833.8

Deferred income taxes 1,044.2 1,128.3 1,123.2

Elimination for sale of 
receivables (279.1) (30.7) (28.4)

Other corporate assets 232.7 217.4 172.8
`

Total assets $5,717.7 $5,889.7 $5,613.2
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Presented below is a reconciliation of 
total business segment operating income to 
consolidated income before income taxes:

(Millions) 2000 1999 1998

Revenue

United States $2,875.5 $3,357.9 $3,154.3

United Kingdom 762.9 806.5 735.8

Other foreign 3,246.6 3,380.2 3,353.8

Total $6,885.0 $7,544.6 $7,243.9

Properties, net

United States $ 389.2 $ 367.2 $ 322.3

United Kingdom 52.6 64.2 56.2

Brazil 37.2 38.8 61.9

Other foreign 141.2 150.6 145.0

Total $ 620.2 $ 620.8 $ 585.4

Year ended December 31
(Millions) 2000 1999 1998

Total segment operating
income $ 530.1 $ 984.3 $ 844.3

Interest expense (79.8) (127.8) (171.7)

Other income (expense), net 32.0 (62.6) (33.1)

Corporate and eliminations 22.9 (23.6) (45.3)

Other special charges (126.2)

Total income before
income taxes $ 379.0 $ 770.3 $ 594.2

Presented below is a reconciliation of total
business segment assets to consolidated
assets:

Geographic information about the
company’s revenue, which is principally
based on location of the selling organization,
and properties, is presented below:

Employee plans
Stock plans Under plans approved by the
stockholders, stock options, stock appreciation
rights, restricted stock, and restricted stock units
may be granted to officers and other key
employees.

Options have been granted to purchase the
company’s common stock at 100% of the fair
market value at the date of grant. Options have
a maximum duration of ten years and generally
become exercisable in annual installments over 
a four-year period following date of grant.

Restricted stock and restricted stock units
have been granted and are subject to forfeiture
until the expiration of a specified period of ser-
vice commencing on the date of grant. Compen-
sation expense resulting from the awards is
charged to income ratably from the date of grant
until the date the restrictions lapse and is based
on fair market value at the date of grant. During
the years ended December 31, 2000, 1999, and
1998, $1.0, $2.5, and $6.0 million was charged
to income, respectively.

Effective July 1, 1998, the company
implemented a world-wide Employee Stock 
Purchase Plan (“ESPP”), which enables
substantially all regular employees to purchase
shares of the company’s common stock through
payroll deductions of up to 10% of eligible pay.
The price the employee pays is 85% of the
market price at the beginning or end of a cal-
endar quarter, whichever is lower. During the
years ended December 31, 2000, 1999, and
1998, employees purchased shares, all of which
were newly issued shares, for which $37.3,
$35.1 and $5.6 million was paid to the company,
respectively. 

U.S. employees are eligible to participate in
an employee savings plan. Under this plan, a
percentage of the employee’s pay may be con-
tributed to various investment alternatives.
Effective July 1, 1998, a company match for up
to 1% of pay was reinstituted. Effective January
1, 2000 such company match was increased to
2%. The match consists of the company
contributing newly issued shares of its common
stock to the plan. The charge to income, related
to such company match, for the years ended
December 31, 2000, 1999, and 1998 was $19.1,
$8.2, and $4.1 million, respectively.

16
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The company applies APB Opinion 25 
for its stock plans and the disclosure-only
option under SFAS No. 123, “Accounting 
for Stock-Based Compensation.” Accordingly,
no compensation expense is recognized for 
stock options granted and for common stock
purchases under the ESPP.

Pro forma information regarding net income
and earnings per share is required by SFAS
No. 123, and has been determined as if the
company had accounted for its stock plans
under the fair value method of SFAS No. 123.
The fair value of stock options is estimated at
the date of grant using a Black-Scholes option
pricing model with the following weighted
average assumptions for 2000, 1999, and

1998, respectively: risk-free interest rates of
6.84%, 5.14%, and 5.67%, volatility factors of
the expected market price of the company’s
common stock of 55%, a weighted average
expected life of the options of five years, and
no dividends.

For purposes of the pro forma disclosures,
the estimated fair value of the options is
amortized to expense over the options’ 
vesting period. The company’s pro forma 
net income for the years ended December 31,
2000, 1999, and 1998, respectively, follows:
2000, $182.5 million, or $.58 per diluted
share; 1999, $472.2 million, or $1.46 per
diluted share; and 1998, $361.6 million, or
$.95 per diluted share.

A summary of the status of stock option activity follows:       

Year ended December 31 
(Shares in thousands) 2000 1999 1998

Weighted Avg. Weighted Avg. Weighted Avg.
Shares Exercise Price Shares Exercise Price Shares Exercise Price

Outstanding at 
beginning of year 19,158 $19.74 218,252 $13.28 20,439 $ 9.90

Granted 7,667 33.36 6,981 30.54 5,492 23.14
Exercised (1,455) 9.58 (4,649) 11.28 (6,842) 10.76
Forfeited and expired (3,285) 24.41 (1,426) 17.05 (837) 14.05

Outstanding at end of year 22,085 24.44 19,158 19.74 18,252 13.28

Exercisable at end of year 7,946 15.72 6,138 11.39 7,547 10.50

Shares available for granting
options at end of year 4,008 2,601 4,592

Weighted average fair value 
of options granted during 
the year $18.76 $15.95 $12.79

December 31, 2000
(Shares in thousands) Outstanding Exercisable

Exercise Average Average Average
Price Range Shares Life * Exercise Price Shares Exercise Price

$4–11 3,864 5.26 $ 7.02 3,209 $ 7.16
$11–30 5,898 6.78 19.01 3,285 17.43
$30–52 12,323 8.78 32.50 1,452 30.74

Total 22,085 7.63 24.44 7,946 15.72

* Average contractual remaining life in years.
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U.S. Plans International Plans  

December 31 (Millions) 2000 1999 2000 1999

Change in benefit obligation
Benefit obligation at beginning of year $3,491.1 $3,684.1 $844.2 $811.7

Service cost 37.4 39.3 18.7 18.0

Interest cost 263.5 251.3 49.9 51.5

Plan participants’ contributions 9.4 10.2

Plan amendments 59.0 1.1
Actuarial (gain) loss (29.2) (234.5) (7.4) 16.3

Benefits paid (262.8) (249.1) (34.7) (35.9)

Effect of settlements/curtailments 1.4 1.1

Foreign currency translation adjustments (121.7) (66.9)

Other (3.8) 38.2

Benefit obligation at end of year $3,559.0 $3,491.1 $757.1 $844.2

Change in plan assets
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year $5,045.5 $4,459.1 $959.3 $877.9

Actual return on plan assets 163.5 831.0 40.4 113.8

Employer contribution 5.1 4.5 10.1 15.3

Plan participants’ contributions 9.4 10.2

Benefits paid (262.8) (249.1) (34.7) (35.9)

Foreign currency translation adjustments (136.6) (73.2)

Other 51.2

Fair value of plan assets at end of year $4,951.3 $5,045.5 $847.9 $959.3

Funded status $1,392.3 $1,554.4 $ 90.8 $115.1

Unrecognized net actuarial (gain) loss (413.6) (660.0) (13.7) (34.4)

Unrecognized prior service (benefit) cost (12.8) (20.0) 6.9 7.6

Unrecognized net obligation at date of adoption .8 .3 .7

Prepaid pension cost $ 965.9 $ 875.2 $ 84.3 $ 89.0

Amounts recognized in the statement of
financial position consist of:

Prepaid pension cost $ 965.9 $ 875.2 $ 97.1 $100.7

Other liabilities (12.8) (11.7)

$ 965.9 $ 875.2 $ 84.3 $ 89.0

Retirement benefits
Retirement plans funded status and amounts
recognized in the company’s consolidated
balance sheet at December 31, 2000 and
1999, follows:

The projected benefit obligations, accumulated
benefit obligations and fair value of plan assets for
plans with accumulated benefit obligations in
excess of plan assets was as follows (in millions
of dollars): $168.7, $161.4, and $91.2 million at
December 31, 2000; and $187.2, $178.1, and
$108.2 million at December 31, 1999.
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Other postretirement benefits
A reconciliation of the benefit obligation, 
fair value of the plan assets, and the funded 
status of the postretirement medical plan 
at December 31, 2000 and 1999, follows:

Year ended December 31 (Millions) 2000 1999 1998

Interest cost $14.9 $14.9 $15.5

Expected return on plan assets (.4) (1.1)

Amortization of prior 
service benefit (2.0) (2.2) (2.7)

Recognized net actuarial loss .4 .6 .6
Settlement/curtailment gain (6.5)

Net periodic benefit cost $13.3 $ 6.4 $12.3

Weighted-average assumptions
as of December 31 were as
follows:

Discount rate 7.70% 7.50% 7.20%

Expected return on plan assets 8.00% 8.00% 8.00%

December 31 (Millions) 2000 1999

Change in benefit obligation 

Benefit obligation at beginning of year $ 217.4 $ 225.8

Interest cost 14.9 14.9

Plan participants’ contributions 24.1 23.8

Actuarial loss (gain) 7.2 1.5

Benefits paid (44.3) (43.1)

Effect of settlement/curtailment (.2) (5.5)

Benefit obligation at end of year $ 219.1 $ 217.4

Change in plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at beginning 
of year $ 13.4 $ 13.3

Actual return on plan assets 1.4 (.1)

Employer contributions 18.7 19.5

Plan participants’ contributions 24.1 23.8

Benefits paid (44.3) (43.1)

Fair value of plan assets at end of year $ 13.3 $ 13.4

Funded status $ (205.8) $(204.0)

Unrecognized net actuarial loss 17.5 12.1

Unrecognized prior service benefit (11.8) (13.6)

Accrued benefit cost $ (200.1) $(205.5)

Net periodic postretirement benefit cost for 2000, 
1999, and 1998 follows:

Net periodic pension costs for 2000, 1999, and 1998 includes the following components:

U.S. Plans International Plans

Year ended December 31 (Millions) 2000 1999 1998 2000 1999 1998

Service cost $ 37.4 $ 39.3 $ 35.7 $ 18.7 $ 18.0 $ 15.3

Interest cost 263.5 251.3 248.3 49.9 51.5 45.8

Expected return on plan assets (440.3) (395.4) (356.5) (67.3) (67.4) (56.8)

Amortization of prior service (benefit) cost (5.9) (6.3) (6.6) .9 1.0 .8

Amortization of asset or liability at adoption .8 .7 .7 .3 .1

Recognized net actuarial loss (gain) 1.1 1.4 23.7 .5 2.8 (.1)

Settlement/curtailment (gain) loss (.4) 1.4 1.1

Net periodic pension (income) cost $ (143.4) $ (109.0) $ (55.1) $ 4.4 $ 7.1 $ 5.0

Weighted-average assumptions as of December 31 
were as follows:

Discount rate 8.00% 7.75% 7.00% 6.57% 6.35% 6.36%

Rate of compensation increase 5.40% 5.40% 5.40% 3.77% 3.81% 4.07%

Expected long-term rate of return on assets 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 8.51% 8.44% 8.23%
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Preferred Common Treasury
(Thousands) Stock Stock Stock

Balance at December 31, 1997 28,800 251,764 (739)

Conversions to common stock (2) 110

Issuance of stock under stock
option and other plans 143 7,573 (553)

Balance at December 31, 1998 28,941 259,447 (1,292)

Conversions to common stock (24,952) 46,090 110

Redemptions (3,941)

Issuance of stock under stock
option and other plans 6,916 (578)

Other (48)

Balance at December 31, 1999 – 312,453 (1,870)

Issuance of stock under stock
option and other plans 4,882 (26)

Balance at December 31, 2000 – 3317,335 (1,896)

The assumed health care cost trend 
rate used in measuring the expected cost 
of benefits covered by the plan was 10.2% 
for 2000, gradually declining to 5.5% in 
2006 and thereafter. A one-percentage point
increase (decrease) in the assumed health
care cost trend rate would increase (decrease)
the accumulated postretirement benefit
obligation at December 31, 2000, by 
$8.6 and $(7.9) million, respectively, and
increase (decrease) the interest cost compo-
nent of net periodic postretirement benefit
cost for 2000 by $.6 and $(.6) million,
respectively.

Stockholders’ equity
The company has 720.0 million authorized 
shares of common stock, par value $.01 per
share, and 40.0 million shares of authorized
preferred stock, par value $1 per share,
issuable in series. 

During the year ended December 31, 1999,
the company made several calls of its Series
A Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock
(“Series A Preferred Stock”) for redemption.
As a result, of the 28.4 million shares of
Series A Preferred Stock outstanding at
December 31, 1998, 24.5 million were
converted into 40.8 million shares of the
company’s common stock and 3.9 million
shares of Series A Preferred Stock were
redeemed for $197.0 million in cash.

In 1999, the remaining balance 
of $27 million of 81/4% convertible subordi-
nated notes due 2006 were converted into
3.9 million shares of the company’s 
common stock.

Each outstanding share of common 
stock has attached to it one preferred 
share purchase right. The rights become
exercisable only if a person or group 
acquires 20% or more of the company’s
common stock, or announces a tender 
or exchange offer for 30% or more of the
common stock. Until the rights become
exercisable, they have no dilutive effect 
on net income per common share.

At December 31, 2000, 28.3 million shares
of unissued common stock of the company
were reserved for stock options and for stock
purchase and savings plans.

Changes in issued shares during the three
years ended December 31, 2000, were as
follows:

17

Year ended 

December 31 (Millions) 2000 1999 1998

Net income $ 225.0 $510.7 $ 376.4

Other comprehensive 
income (loss) 

Foreign currency translation
adjustments (54.3) (41.6) (89.6)

Related tax (benefit) expense 19.0 (2.8) (6.1)

Total other comprehensive 
income (loss) (73.3) (38.8) (83.5)

Comprehensive income $ 151.7 $471.9 $ 292.9

Comprehensive income for the three years
ended December 31, 2000, includes the
following components:
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Report of Management
The management of the company is responsible for the integrity of its financial statements. These statements have been

prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States and include amounts based on

the best estimates and judgments of management. Financial information included elsewhere in this report is consistent

with that in the financial statements.

The company maintains a system of internal accounting controls designed to provide reasonable assurance at a

reasonable cost that assets are safeguarded against loss or unauthorized use, and that transactions are executed in

accordance with management’s authorization and recorded and summarized properly. This system is augmented by

written policies and procedures, an internal audit program, and the selection and training of qualified personnel.

Ernst & Young LLP, independent auditors, have audited the company’s financial statements. Their accompanying 

report is based on audits conducted in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States,

which require a review of the system of internal accounting controls and tests of accounting procedures and records 

to the extent necessary for the purpose of their audits.

The Board of Directors, through its Audit Committee, which is composed entirely of outside directors, oversees

management’s responsibilities in the preparation of the financial statements and selects the independent auditors, subject

to stockholder ratification. The Audit Committee meets regularly with the independent auditors, representatives of

management, and the internal auditors to review the activities of each and to assure that each is properly discharging its

responsibilities. To ensure complete independence, the internal auditors and representatives of Ernst & Young LLP have

full access to meet with the Audit Committee, with or without management representatives present, to discuss the results 

of their examinations and their opinions on the adequacy of internal controls and the quality of financial reporting.

Lawrence A. Weinbach Janet Brutschea Haugen

Chairman, President, Senior Vice President

and Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer

Report of Independent Auditors
To the Board of Directors of Unisys Corporation

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Unisys Corporation at December 31, 2000 and 1999,

and the related consolidated statements of income, stockholders’ equity and cash flows for each of the three years in the

period ended December 31, 2000. These financial statements are the responsibility of Unisys Corporation’s management.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States. Those stan-

dards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements

are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and dis-

closures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant esti-

mates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits

provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated

financial position of Unisys Corporation at December 31, 2000 and 1999, and the consolidated results of its operations 

and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2000, in conformity with accounting

principles generally accepted in the United States.

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania

January 18, 2001
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Unisys Corporation

Supplemental Financial Data 
(Unaudited)

Quarterly financial information

First Second Third Fourth

(Millions, except per share data) Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Year

2000

Revenue $1,668.7 $1,597.1 $1,690.9 $1,928.3 $6,885.0
Gross profit 539.3 480.8 474.7 594.3 2,089.1
Income before income taxes 161.4 85.3 65.0 67.3 379.0
Income before extraordinary item 106.5 56.3 42.9 39.1 244.8
Net income 106.5 36.5 42.9 39.1 225.0
Earnings per common share – basic

Before extraordinary item .34 .18 .14 .12 .78
Extraordinary item (.06) (.06)

Total .34 .12 .14 .12 .72

Earnings per common share – diluted
Before extraordinary item .34 .18 .14 .12 .77
Extraordinary item (.06) (.06)

Total .34 .12 .14 .12 .71

Market price per common share – high 36.06 28.19 15.31 16.38 36.06
– low 24.25 14.25 9.13 9.25 9.13

3/

1999

Revenue $1,822.8 $1,896.5 $1,865.4 $1,959.9 $7,544.6
Gross profit 668.6 664.1 670.2 681.8 2,684.7
Income before income taxes 169.7 182.5 196.1 222.0 770.3
Income before extraordinary item 109.9 118.0 150.5 144.4 522.8
Net income 109.9 118.0 138.4 144.4 510.7
Dividends on preferred shares 22.8 12.0 1.9 36.7
Earnings on common shares 87.1 106.0 136.5 144.4 474.0
Earnings per common share – basic

Before extraordinary item .33 .39 .49 .47 1.69
Extraordinary item (.04) (.04)

Total .33 .39 .45 .47 1.65

Earnings per common share – diluted
Before extraordinary item .31 .37 .47 .46 1.63
Extraordinary item (.04) (.04)

Total .31 .37 .43 .46 1.59

Market price per common share – high 36.50 39.94 .49.69 47.44 49.69
– low 27.63 27.38 37.06 20.94 20.94

3/
.
In the fourth quarter of 2000, the company recognized a pretax restructuring charge of $127.6 million, or $.29 per diluted common share.
Excluding this item, diluted earnings per share for the year before the extraordinary item was $1.06. See Note 5 of the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements.

In the third quarter of 1999, the company completed three acquisitions that were accounted for as poolings of interests and all prior periods 
were restated. See Note 3 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Included in the third quarter of 1999, the company recognized a one-time tax benefit of $22.0 million, or $.07 per diluted common share.
Excluding this item, diluted earnings per share for the year before the extraordinary item was $1.56. See Note 7 of the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements.

The individual quarterly per-common share amounts may not total to the per-common share amount for the full year because of accounting 
rules governing the computation of earnings per common share.

Market prices per common share are as quoted on the New York Stock Exchange composite listing.
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Ten-year summary of selected financial data

(Millions, except per share data) 2000(1) 1999 1998 1997(1)

Results of operations

Revenue $6,885.0 $ 7,544.6 $ 7,243.9 $ 6,662.9

Operating income (loss) 426.8 960.7 799.0 (408.4)

Income (loss) from continuing operations 
before income taxes 379.0 770.3 594.2 (748.1)

Income (loss) from continuing operations
before extraordinary items and
changes in accounting principles 244.8 522.8 376.4 (852.9)

Net income (loss) 225.0 510.7 376.4 (852.9)

Dividends on preferred shares 7,544.6 136.7 106.5 111.1

Earnings (loss) on common shares 225.0 474.0 269.9 (964.0)

Earnings (loss) from continuing operations 
per common share

Basic .78 1.69 1.07 (5.25)

Diluted .77 1.63 1.01 (5.25)

Financial position

Working capital (deficit) $ (98.8) $ 227.2 $ 247.5 $ 321.9

Total assets 5,717.7 5,889.7 5,613.2 5,631.6

Long-term debt 536.3 950.2 1,106.7 1,438.4

Common stockholders’ equity(2) 2,186.1 1,953.3 90.9 (210.3)

Common stockholders’ equity per share 6.93 6.29 .35 (.84)

Other data

Research and development $ 333.6 $ 339.4 $ 308.3 $ 314.8

Capital additions of properties 198.3 219.6 209.1 184.0

Investment in marketable software 152.4 122.8 100.3 133.5

Depreciation 143.0 141.8 149.2 159.1

Amortization

Marketable software 115.5 110.9 112.3 97.2

Goodwill 12.5 12.5 8.9 963.9

Common shares outstanding (millions) 315.4 310.6 258.2 251.0

Stockholders of record (thousands) ,29.7 32.8 28.6 37.3

Employees (thousands) 36.9 35.8 33.5 32.9

(1) Includes special pretax charges of $127.6 million, $1,039.2 million, $846.6 million, $186.2 million, and $1,200.0 million for the years ended 
December 31, 2000, 1997, 1995, 1994, and 1991, respectively.

(2) After deduction of cumulative preferred dividends in arrears in 1991, 1992, and 1993.
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1996 1995(1) 1994(1) 1993 1992 1991(1)

$ 6,397.9 $ 6,370.3 $ 6,130.6 $ 6,133.0 $ 6,750.9 $ 6,943.0

313.1 (568.4) 273.8 692.7 690.2 (612.7)

80.2 (786.0) 17.4 365.2 304.6 (1,422.2)

50.7 (632.2) 14.8 280.6 168.6 (1,517.8)

38.6 (629.5) 103.2 559.7 363.5 (1,390.9)

120.8 120.3 120.1 121.6 122.1 121.2

(82.2) (749.8) (16.9) 438.1 241.4 (1,512.1)

(.40) (4.36) (.61) .97 .28 (10.05)

(.40) (4.36) (.61) .88 .28 (10.05)

$ 684.5 $ 93.5 $ 1,044.2 $ 700.9 $ 537.7 $ 406.7

7,002.3 7,153.3 7,238.1 7,386.3 7,365.1 8,256.5

2,271.5 1,533.3 1,864.1 2,025.0 2,172.8 2,694.6

188.8 303.7 1,052.0 1,072.0 561.8 359.2

1.07 1.76 6.10 6.24 3.44 2.20

$ 352.0 $ 411.7 $ 464.8 $ 496.9 $ 513.3 $ 617.3

164.3 196.0 209.4 174.0 228.4 224.1

116.6 123.0 121.3 118.7 110.2 167.7

184.4 205.5 228.7 254.0 313.4 413.9

101.7 151.7 150.5 144.6 131.8 241.0

46.1 40.9 36.9 36.7 36.8 246.6

176.4 172.9 172.5 171.9 163.4 163.1

39.2 41.5 45.3 47.8 51.7 54.6

33.2 37.6 38.0 38.4 42.0 46.7
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president and general counsel. A Unisys
officer since 1991. Age 64.

Scott A. Battersby
Vice president and treasurer. Previously vice
president of corporate strategy and develop-
ment. A newly elected officer. Age 42.

Jack A. Blaine
Executive vice president and president,
worldwide sales and services. Previously
president, Unisys Pacific Asia Americas
Africa. A Unisys officer since 1988. Age 56.

Leo C. Daiuto
Vice president, product development and
technology. A Unisys officer since 2000. 
Age 55.

Robert D. Evans
Vice president and president, global out-
sourcing. Previously vice president and gen-
eral manager, Unisys outsourcing, North
America. A Unisys officer since 2000. Age 53.

Corporate Officers
from left to right
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George R. Gazerwitz
Executive vice president and president, sys-
tems & technology. Previously president,
Unisys computer systems. A Unisys officer
since 1984. Age 60.

Janet Brutschea Haugen
Senior vice president and chief financial
officer. Previously vice president and corpo-
rate controller. A Unisys officer since 1996.
Age 42.

Joseph W. McGrath
Executive vice president and president,
global industries. Previously senior vice
president, major account sales and chief
marketing officer. A Unisys officer since
1999. Age 48.

James F. McGuirk II
Senior vice president and general manager,
North America sales & services. Previously
senior vice president, worldwide public
sector. A Unisys officer since 1996. Age 57.

Jack F. McHale
Vice president, investor relations. Previously
vice president, Unisys corporate communica-
tions. A Unisys officer since 1986. Age 51.

Nancy Straus Sundheim
Senior vice president, general counsel and
secretary. Previously vice president, deputy
general counsel and secretary. A Unisys
officer since 1999. Age 49.

Alastair M. Taylor
Vice president, worldwide financial services,
global industries. Previously chief executive
of the information services group, Europe. A
Unisys officer since 2000. Age 52.

Janet B. Wallace
Senior vice president and president, global
network services. Previously vice president,
services marketing and sales, Compaq. A
Unisys officer since 2000. Age 49.

Lawrence A. Weinbach
Chairman, president and chief executive
officer. Previously managing partner and
chief executive, Andersen Worldwide. A
Unisys officer since 1997. Age 61.
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J.P. Bolduc
Chairman and chief executive officer, JPB Enterprises, Inc., a merchant
banking, venture capital and real estate investment holding company
with interests in the food, real estate, packaging, instruments and manu-
facturing industries. Previously served in the positions of vice chairman,
chief operating officer, president and chief executive officer, W.R. Grace
& Co., from 1986 to 1995. Also serves as a director of Proudfoot PLC. 
A Unisys director since 1992. Age 61. 3,4

Dr. James J. Duderstadt
President Emeritus and University Professor of Science and Engineering
at the University of Michigan. Also serves as a director of CMS Energy
Corporation. A Unisys director since 1990. Age 58. 1

Henry C. Duques
Director and chairman and chief executive officer of First Data 
Corporation, an electronic payments and information management 
company. Also serves as a director of theglobe.com, inc. and CheckFree
Corporation. A Unisys director since 1998. Age 57. 2

Gail D. Fosler
Senior vice president and chief economist of The Conference Board, a
business-sponsored, nonprofit research organization. Also serves as a
director of H.B. Fuller Company and DBS Holdings (Singapore) and as a
trustee of the John Hancock Mutual Funds. A Unisys director since 1993.
Age 53. 3

Melvin R. Goodes
Retired director and chairman and chief executive officer of Warner-
Lambert Company, a diversified worldwide health care, pharmaceutical
and consumer products company. Previously held position of president
and chief operating officer. A Unisys director since 1987. Age 65. 2

Rajiv L. Gupta
Director and chairman and chief executive officer of Rohm and Haas
Company, a specialty chemical company. Previously held the positions of
vice chairman and vice president. Also serves as a director of Technitrol,
Inc. A Unisys director since 2000. Age 55. 1

Edwin A. Huston
Retired vice chairman, Ryder System, Inc., an international highway
transportation services company. A Unisys director since 1993. Age 62. 1

Kenneth A. Macke
General partner of Macke Partners, a venture capital firm. Previously
served as chairman and chief executive officer, Dayton Hudson 
Corporation, a general merchandise retailer, from 1984 to 1994. A Unisys
director since 1989. Age 62. 2,4

Theodore E. Martin
Retired director and president and chief executive officer, Barnes Group,
Inc., a manufacturer and distributor of automotive and aircraft compo-
nents and maintenance products. Previously held position of executive
vice president-operations. Also serves as a director of Ingersoll-Rand
Company and Applera Corporation. A Unisys director since 1995. 
Age 61. 3

Lawrence A. Weinbach
Unisys chairman, president and chief executive officer since 1997. Previ-
ously served as managing partner and chief executive, Andersen World-
wide, a global professional services organization. Also serves as a
director of Avon Products, Inc. A Unisys director since 1997. Age 61.

Board of Directors

J.P. Bolduc Henry C. Duques Gail D. Fosler Melvin R. Goodes

Rajiv L. Gupta Edwin A. Huston Kenneth A. Macke Theodore E. Martin Lawrence A. Weinbach

Dr. James J. Duderstadt
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General Investor Inquiries and
Correspondence

Investors with general questions about the company

are invited to contact Unisys Investor Relations at 

215-986-6999 or investor@unisys.com.

Direct investor correspondence to:

Jack F. McHale

Vice President, Investor Relations

Unisys Corporation

Unisys Way

Blue Bell, PA  19424

Internet Address

Unisys makes investor information available on its

Web site at http://www.unisys.com/investor. This site

is updated regularly and includes quarterly earnings

releases, key management presentations, a delayed

Unisys stock quote, management biographies, key

publications such as the annual report, and other

information useful to stockholders.

Company Financial Information

Unisys offers a telephone information service that

provides fast, convenient access to company financial

news. Stockholders can use this service to call seven

days a week, 24 hours a day, to hear the most current

financial results and other general investor

information. Callers also can use this service to

request a printed copy of the current quarterly

earnings release by fax or mail.

•In the United States and Canada, call 

1-800-9-UNISYS (986-4797)

•Outside the United States, call +402-573-3678

Several publications that contain information of

interest to investors and potential investors are also

available via written or telephone request. These

publications include:

•2000 and previous-year annual reports

•Forms 10-K and 10-Q filed with the Securities and

Exchange Commission

You can obtain these publications without charge by

contacting:

Investor Relations, A2-15

Unisys Corporation

Unisys Way

Blue Bell, PA 19424

215-986-5777

Stockholder Services

The Unisys transfer agent is EquiServe Trust

Company, N.A. Administrative inquiries relating to

stockholder records, stock transfer, exchange of

common stock certificates (Convergent, PulsePoint,

Sperry or Timeplex) or change of ownership or

address may be directed to:

EquiServe Trust Company, N.A.

P.O. Box 2500

Jersey City, NJ 07303

201-324-0498

Toll free: 888-764-5596 (in the U.S. and Canada)

Hearing impaired: 201-222-4955 (TDD)

E-mail: fctc@em.equiserve.com

Internet: http://www.equiserve.com

Note that previous forms of certificates for

Burroughs/Unisys common stock remain valid and do

not need to be exchanged for new Unisys certificates.

Annual Meeting

Stockholders are invited to attend the 2001 Unisys

Annual Meeting of Stockholders, which will be held at

the Inn at Penn, Sansom Common, 3600 Sansom

Street, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, on Thursday, April

26, 2001, at 9:30 a.m.

Formal notice of the meeting, along with the proxy

statement and proxy materials, was mailed or

otherwise made available on or about March 15, 2001,

to stockholders of record as of February 28, 2001.

Common Stock Information

Unisys common stock (trading symbol “UIS”) is listed

for trading on the New York Stock Exchange, on

exchanges in Amsterdam, Brussels, Frankfurt and

London, and on the UBS AG in Switzerland.

At December 31, 2000, there were 315.4 million shares

outstanding and about 29,700 stockholders of record.

Independent Auditors

Ernst & Young LLP

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania

Statements made by Unisys in this annual report 

that are not historical facts, including those 

regarding future performance, are forward-looking

statements under the Private Securities Litigation 

Reform Act of 1995. These statements are based 

on current expectations and assumptions and 

involve risks and uncertainties that could cause 

actual results to differ from expectations. These 

risks and uncertainties are discussed on page 35 

of this report.

Unisys and the Unisys logo 
are registered trademarks and 
e-@ction is a trademark of
Unisys Corporation. Intel is a
registered trademark of Intel
Corporation. Microsoft is a regis-
tered trademark of Microsoft
Corporation. All other brands,
logos and products referenced in
this annual report are acknowl-
edged to be trademarks or regis-
tered trademarks of their
respective holders, including 
but not limited to the following
companies:  

Ariba Inc.
BEA Systems Inc.
Cisco Systems Inc.
Compaq Computer Corp.
Computer Associates Int’l Inc.
Dell Computer Corp.
EMC Corp.
Hewlett-Packard Co.
Hitachi Ltd.
ICG Commerce
ICL
Intershop Communications
Nortel Networks Ltd.
Oracle Corp.
SAP AG
Siebel Systems Inc.

This annual report was designed,
written and produced by Unisys
Corporate Communications.
Principal photography by Richard
Bowditch. 

Printed on recycled paper.
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